
TOWN OF HAMILTON ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING 
AMENDED AGENDA - ORIGINAL POSTED BY TOWN CLERK ON 4/10/23 @ 12:00 PM 

May 3, 2023 -WEDNESDAY - 7:00 P.M. 

In person at 577 Bay Road in theist floor Memorial Room or via Zoom 

Join Zoom Webinar: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83590571007?pwd=Wnd10FNuanY2KOIJdmwOSEhiU3hTdz09 

Webinar ID: 835 9057 1007 

Passcode: 319584 

One tap mobile: US: +13052241968, 88550685593# Or Telephone: US: +1 305 224 1968 

. Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kbjXL8KhNw 

PUBLIC HEARING: The Application is for a Special Permit under Zoning Bylaw 3.6 in order to have an Accessory 
Apartment in a lower level of the existing house. The property located at 21 Blueberry Lane, Assessor's Map 42, Lot 20, 
Zoning District RlB, the owner is Nathan Smith. 

PUBLIC HEARING: Applicant is seeking a Variance under Zoning Bylaw 3.1 in order to construct a detached 18' x 26' 
studio apartment with office space to be located behind existing structure which is used as a business. The property 
located at 264 Bay Road, Assessor's Map 49, Lot 63, Zoning District B. The applicant is Brian Stein, the owner is Mingo 
Springs LLC. 

CONTINUED PUBLIC HEARING: Special Permit Application for the property owned by Paul Thober, located at 438 Asbury 
Street, Assessor's Map 37, lot 43. Applicant is seeking approval to construct an apartment - Zoning Bylaw 3.6: Accessory 
Apartment. 

BOARD DISCUSSION REGARDING APPLICANTS APPEAL OF ASBURY COMMONS 40B COMPREHENSIVE PERMIT: The 
Board will discuss and consider the Appeal as submitted by the applicants Harborlight Community Partners, 283 Elliot 
Street, Beverly MA, to the Dept. of Housing and Community Development Housing Appeals Committee on April 10, 
2023. The Appeal was directed upon the Decision as approved and signed by the Hamilton Zoning Board of Appeals as 
filed with the Hamilton Town Clerk on March 21, 2023. The Comprehensive Permit Decision, pursuant to MGL Ch. 40B, 
was to construct a 45-unit, affordable housing complex to be located at 466 High land Street, Assessor's Map 28-8, Lot 1, 
Zoning District RA. 

REGULAR BUSINESS 

• Meeting Minutes 

• Updates from the Chair 

Items may be heard out of the listed order. The agenda items listed are those items which were reasonably anticipated by the Chair 
to be discussed at the meeting. Not all items listed on the agenda may in fact be discussed and other items not listed may also be 
brought up for discussion to the extent permitted by law. Meeting dates, time, and location are subject to change as allowed by the 
Open Meeting Law. Please refer to the Town web page: hamiltonma.gov for details regarding a specific agenda. The Zoning Board of 
Appeals typically meets the first Wednesday of the month. 



I 
CJ 
::l 
ro 
I 

""'C 
c 
o-
n 
:c 
ro 
CJ ., 
-· 



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

TOWN OF HAMILTON - ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

The Town of Hamilton Zoning Board of Appeals will hold a Public Hearing on Wednesday, May 

3, 2023, at 7:00 pm, at Town Hall, 577 Bay Road, Memorial Room, and via Zoom, for the 

property located at 21 Blueberry Lane, Assessor's Map 42, Lot 20, owner Nathan Smith. The 

Application is for a Special Permit under Zoning Bylaw 3.6 in order to have an Accessory 

Apartment in a lower level of the existing house. A copy of the application is available for 

review by contacting the Building Department. Zoom details will be available when agenda is 

posted. 

William Bowler, Chair 



Date ,5ubmitted: 

TOWN OF HAMILTON 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

APPLICATION FOR ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS HEARING 
To be completed by (ll/ A.pplictints 

ApplicantName: Nathan Smith Phone: 857 ".'300-0588 

AppticanLA<ldress: 21 Blueberry Lane Hamilton, MA 01982 

R.(L · 3-~3 JZ8 
-P a_,,,ld 4 -y.:;-

Applicant respect.fully petitions the Board of Appeal for .the fo11owing: S°Y£c \ f\-L ~j?J\A ~ 
. . . ffc_c_,,£ SS o '2:'() A-P~\ )Jvf! __ 10--\ - sc-

That he/she is seeking (check all that apply): '- r-C \ le1 I\ 

~
Val'iance: (State Type) 
Extcnsio11 or Alterntion of a Nou-Coufotming Use, Structure, or Lot 
Site Pla11 Review 
A .breviatcd Site Plan Review 
' pecial Permit: (State Type) 
Appeal of Decision of the Building Inspector 
Conversion fo1• Temporary Living Area · 

. Comprehensive Permit 
•Other: 

. Address of Properly if different from Applicant Address above: 

Owner of properly if (lifferent from Appli<;iµ1t noted above: 
Note: If not the owne1' of the property, applicant must provide proof they are either the holder of a Written option Lo 
purchase the property (or) verification they have authority to act on behalf of the owner of the property. 

Zoning Distric~: i( - f 5 
Existii1g V>t Size: u S - r0,..2<(:) <;r, 

State Briefly what structures ate on the property: 
The only structure on the property is the main dwelling . 

... 

State in det!lil what the petitioner desires to do at said subject property: --f\CC I;! 55.or '-1 
We plan to convert our basement space into a legal tl'HQw apartment The space already has a 
bedroom, living room, and bathroom. We only plan to add a kitchen to complete the space into it's 
own apartment. 2! 00 s9 -P+-

State whether any petition as to the said. premises has been submitted to this Board within the last five years. If so, 
give .details: 

We are new owners of the property as of 8/30/2022 so we do not have any knowledge of any 
petitions that have been sumbitted in the last 5 years. 

State if any Building Permit has been granted to said premises within the past two ye!lrs. If yes, give details: 

We are new owners of the property as of 8/30/2022 so we do not have any knowledge of any 
permits that have been granted in the past 2 years. 

Address: 21 Blueberry Lane 

Hamilton, MA 01982 

Phon_e: _8_5_7_-3_0_0_-0_5_8_8 ___ _ 

e.md{\ n°'-+ -e.5m~@ 
q rn aA \, e_j) m 

! 

I 
l 
l 



Date Submitted: 

AppHcant Name: 

Applicant Address: 

TOWN OF HAMILTON 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

nEQUESTFORFIND_HlGS-.OR~A..CT 
PERMITO~ 

> l 1:J: I ri.,o~> 
Nathan Smith 

21 Blueberry Lane Hamilton, MA 01982 

State nature of and location for which Pe1mit or Special Permit is sought: 

The special permit would be used to put in a kitchen in our basement. The basement already has 
a bedroom, living room, bathroom, and separate entrance. The only work that would be 
completed would be installing a kitchen that includeds a sink, stove, and cabinets. 

State how or why the proposed use would be in harmony with the general purpose and intent of 
the Zohing By-Law: 

Our plans work in harmony with the zoning by law and will follow all the guidelines. The proposed 
basement in-law apartment will have it's own entrance and parking spot in the driveway. All the work 
that will be completed will be within the interior of the dwelling and no exterior work will be done. 

State how or why the specific site is an appropriate location for such use: 
The site is an appropriate location for an in-law apartment because the home has excess space 
that would otherwise be unused. By creating a space for our family to use, we are using the 
space as efficitently as possible . 

. State whether the specific site has adequate public sewerage and Wij.ter facilities or suitable soil 
. for an on Jot sewerage and water systems: 

The property has a 5 bedroom septic tank. Currently 2 of the 5 existing bedrooms are not used 
as bedrooms so the septic is not being used at capacity. The basement has it's own bathroom 
that uses it's own sump pump. 

State how or why the lJSe as developed will not adversely affect the neighborhood: 

There are no alterations being completed to the exterior so there is no affect to our neighbors. We 
also live in a neighborhood that houses many multi-generation families so adding a legal in-law 
is in line with the culture that already existshere. 

State why there will not be a nuisance or serious hazard to vehicles or pedestrians using the 
following streets for the purpose of this permit: 
Streets: 21 Blueberry Lane Hamilton, MA 01982 
The property has a driveway that can accomadate 10 cars including a 3 car garage. 
Since there is an abundance of space for cars, we will not need to use the street for 
parking thus there will be be no nuisance or hazards to other vehicles or pedestrians. 

I ,. 
i 



·State how and what adequate and appropriate facilities will be provided for the proposed use: 

The basement space is an adequate size to be converted into a legal in-law apartment. 
The basement already has a bedroom, closet, bathroom, living room, and empty space that 
will be converted into a kitchen. The apartment already has its own entrance and parking space. 
The only work that needs to be completed is the addition of the kitchen which is simplified by 
the existence of the bathroom and sump pump. · 

Signed: 4-L. 
Address: 21 Blueberry Lane 

Hamilton, MA 01982 

Phone: 857-300-0588 

.... 



~merican 1Lanb ~urbep ~ssoc., l!nc. 
42 CHERRY STREET GLOUCESTER, MA 01930 benson62@comcast.net 978-281-7878 

I, Kirk W. Benson, a Registered Land Surveyor, do hereby certify that the above Mortgage lnpseclion Plot Plan was prepared 
for CROSS COUNTRY MORTGAGE, LLC ISAOA/A TIMA in connection with a new mortgage and is nol intended or 
represented to be a land or property line survey. No comers were sel. It can not be used for establishing fence , hedge or 
building lines. No responsibility is extended herein to the land owner or occupant. This plan shall not be accepted for recording. 
The location of the structures as shown hereon is in compliance with the local applicable zoning by laws in effect when 
constructed, with respect to horizontal dimensional requirements or Capter 481of1987, except as noted hereon(*). 
This plan has been prepared for conveyancing purposes only for the above party and is nol to be used for boundary 
measurements. Subject property is localed in X zones on a Federal Insurance Administration Designated Flood Haz,ard Area, 
250084 Panel 289 G dated July 16, 2014 

8/ 16/22 

Kirk W. Benson, President, P.L.S. #40036 

No.21 

D 
251' 

Cl 
C:::l 
CJ 

BLUEBERRY LANE 

NOTES: EDITED COPY - DRIVEWAY ADDED BY THE HOME OWNER 

ADDRESS:21BLUEBERRYLANE 
HAi\lli. TON, MA 

DEED REFERENCE: BOOK 36594 PAGE 339 

J-3008 

Eight cars can be comfortably 
parked, as there is room for 
five vehicles in the driveway 
and a three car garage 

CERTIFIED PLOT PLAN 
Located In 

HAMIL TON, MA 
Prepared By 

American Land Survey A ssociates, Inc. 

Kirk W . Benson, President, PLS 

42 Cherry Street Gloucester, MA 01930 

978-281-7878 

SCALE I" = 40' AUGUST 16, 2022 



~mertcan JLanb ~urbep ~ssoc., 3Jnc. 
42 CHERRY STREET GLOUCESTER, MA 01930 benson62@comcast.net 978-281-7878 

I, Kirk W. Benson, a Registered Land Surveyor, do hereby certify that the above Mortgage Inpsection Plot Plan was prepared 
for CROSS COUNTRY MORTGAGE, LLC JSAOA/ATIMA in connection with a new mortgage and is not intended or 
represented to be a land or property line survey. No comers were set. It can not be used for establishing fence, hedge or 
building lines. No responsibility is extended herein to the land owner or occupant. This plan shall not be accepted for recording. 
The location of the structures as shown hereon is in compliance with the local applicable zoning by laws in effect when 
constructed, with respect to horizontal dimensional requirements or Capter 481 of 1987, except as noted hereon(*). 
This plan has been prepared for conveyancing purposes only for the above party and is not to be used for boundary 
measurements. Subject property is located in X zones on a Federal Insurance Administration Designated Flood Hazard Area, 
250084 Panel 289 G dated July 16, 2014 

8/16/22 

Kirk W. Benson, President, P.L.S. #40036 

No.21 

D 

251' 

BLUEBERRY LANE 

NOTES: 

ADDRESS:2!BLUEBERRYLANE 
HAMILTON, MA 

DEED REFERENCE: BOOK 36594 PAGE 339 

J-3008 

CERTIFIED PLOT PLAN 
Located In 

HAMILTON, MA 
Prepared By 

American Land Survey Associates, Inc. 

Kirk W. Benson, President, PLS 

42 Cherry Street Gloucester, MA 01930 

978-281-7878 

SCALE I"= 40' AUGUST 16, 2022 



1 
··---·--· ·--· -·-··-····_:·:-.. ~. ,_ .. .. - --·--- -·-- .. 

l'-
l . I 
l 
I 
I 

!~ 
!.---

;I'-.\ 
•\.j'J 

!L'-__ 
'~ ! 
:~ ' 

i~ · 

:~ ~ ' . 
j : 

' rs . 
I 

.:f:c 

-··- · ----

I - . 

-· - ·-

' .... 

-i------

--\}\---
:~ 

' 

- ~ _j r:- ~I er U\ :-i c ~ .,J 
-VI f 'Tl () 

I 



Ill I II Ill I Ill I lllllllllll lllll llllllll lllll Ill 
SO.ESSEX tt217 Bk:41160 Pg:78 

08/30/2022 12:31 DEED Pg 1/1 

QUITCLAIM DEED 

I, Sherie Dale Parr, as Trustee of the DALE REALTY TRUST, under a Declaration of 
Trust dated June 6, 1995 and subsequently amended on February 14, 2018, and recorded 
with the Essex South Registry of Deeds in Book 13183, Page 19 and Book 36594, 
Page 335 respectively, for the consideration paid in the amount of One Million Dollars 
and 00/100 ($1,000,000.00), grant to Nathan Smith and Sophia Smith as husband and 
wife tenants by the entirety of 21 Blueberry Lane, South Hamilton, Massachusetts, 

with QUITCLAIM COVENANTS, 

the land with the buildings and improvements thereon, situated in said Hamilton on 
Blueberry Lane, being shown as lot #9 on a plan recorded in Essex South District 
Registry of Deeds, Plan Book 97, Plan 11, bounded and described as follows: 

NORTHEASTERLY 
SOUTHEASTERLY 

WESTERLY 

by said Blueberry Lane, Two hundred fifty-one (251) feet; 
by lot #11, on said plan, Three hundred twenty-one and 
27 /100 (321.27) feet; 
by lot #5, 4, and 3A on said plan, Four hundr~d ~even and 
69/100 (407 69) feet MASSACHUSETTS EXCISE TAX 

• • Southern Essex District ROD 
Date: 08/30/2022 12:31 PM 
ID : 1544361 Doc# 20220830002170 

Together with the right to pass and repass over said Blueberry Lane. Fcee : ·$$4,56
0
0.00

0
,,

0 00 ens . 1 , 00 , "' . 

Grantor hereby releases any and all rights of homestead and certifies under the pains 
and penalties of perjury that no spouse or other persons are entitled to claim the benefit 
of an e .. xisting estate of homestead in the premises. 

For title see deed dated February 14, 2018, and recorded with said Essex South Registry 
of Deeds in Book 36594, Page 339. 

WITNESS my hand and seal this Js/:.y of August, 2022. 

~O~?tVY)'J~ 
. I 

Sherie Dale Parr, Trustee 

Commonwealth of Massachusetts ,~ 
Middlesex, ss if/! August 2J , 2022 

On this 2.f aay of August, 2022, before me, the undersigned notary public, 
personally appeared Sherie Dale Parr, as Trustee as aforesaid, proved to me through 
satisfactory evidence of identification, being a //ti ffe;as t:eau to 
be the person whose name is signed on the preceding or attached document, and 
acknowledged to me that she signed it volun~arily for · tated purpose as Trustee of 
the Dale Realty Trust. · - ,..-------~--ai..r 

- ~ ROBERT A. WILKINSON ------------+-="w ............ --- Notary Pubuc Robert A. Wilkinson . COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 

N P bl. My Commission Expires 
otary U lC November 14, 2025 

My commission expires: 11/ 



APPLICATION CHECK SHEET 
HAMlLTON ZONING BOAA.D OF APPEALS 

SPECIAL PERMIT 

8 copies of all Materials. Refer to lilstruction Sheet. 
Section of the Zoning By-Law covering desired Board action(s) 

Special Permit Requested. Check all that apply. 
Disk.i:ct: Type Use: 
~esidential District o 
CJ.Business Disuict CJ 

CJ Conservancy District o 
o Elder Housing District o 
o Groundwater Protection Oveday o 
CJ Telecommunications CJ 
oOther. Specify. o 

Time Period Grai1ted for Permit: 

.. 

I CJ Temporary Addition.al Living Area: 4 years 
/V fr· El Adult.Entertainment Uses: 1 year 

a Special permit will lapse after 1 year if substantial use or constrnction has not 
commenced except for good cause. 

Visu~l Materials Required: 
a Submit at a minimum matedals requil'ed.for Site Plan Review 
o Refer to Specific Sections of the By-Law for additional information regarding eaqh 

district 

Board Reviews Required other than ZBA: 
a Eldei' Housing District: Requires Planning Board approval 

1 1 \. p..--- a Residential District - Golf, tennis, swimming, riding, polo, skiing, skating, all other 
f'.A athletic and recreational activities/special events - where charges or admission fees are 

xequ.ired: Requires Board of Selectmen approval 



March 23, 2023 Map 42 Lot 20 

TOWN OF HAMIL TON 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

CERTIFICATE OF PARTIES IN INTEREST 

Pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 40A, Section 11, the 
undersigned Assessor of the Town of Hamilton , hereby certifies that the 
names and addresses appearing on the list appended hereto are those of 
the: 

(a) abutters 100' 

X (b) owners of land directly opposite on any public or private street or way 

X (c) owners of land within 300' of the property line of the property at: 

21 Blueberry Lane 

HAMILTON 

Dated March 23, 2023 

Prepared by the Assessors Office of the Town of Hamilton. 

Assistant Assessor 



300 feet Abutters List Report 
Hamilton, MA 
March 23, 2023 

Subject Property: 

Parcel Number: 42-0020 
CAMA Number: 42-000-0020 
Property Address: 21 BLUEBERRY LN 

Abutters: 

Parcel Number: 33-0001 
CAMA Number: 33-000-0001 
Property Address: 210 SAGAMORE ST 

Parcel Number: 33-0010 
CAMA Number: 33-000-0010 
Property Address: 217 SAGAMORE ST 

Parcel Number: 42-0009 
CAMA Number: 42-000-0009 
Property Address: 188 SAGAMORE ST 

Parcel Number: 42-0010 
CAMA Number: 42-000-0010 
Property Address: 200 SAGAMORE ST 

Parcel Number: 42-0011 
CAMA Number: 42-000-0011 
Property Address: 0 SAGAMORE ST 

Parcel Number: 42-0012 
CAMA Number: 42-000-0012 
Property Address: 16 BLUEBERRY LN 

Parcel Number: 42-0013 
CAMA Number: 42-000-0013 
Property Address: 26 BLUEBERRY LN 

Parcel Number: 42-0014 
CAMA Number: 42-000-0014 
Property Address: 34 BLUEBERRY LN 

Parcel Number: 42-0015 
CAMA Number: 42-000-0015 
Property Address: 44 BLUEBERRY LN 

Parcel Number: 42-0018 
CAMA Number: 42-000-0018 
Property Address: 39 BLUEBERRY LN 

Mailing Address: SMITH NATHAN SMITH SOPHIA 
21 BLUEBERRY LANE 
HAMILTON, MA 01982 

Mailing Address: WYSOCKI PETER D WYSOCKI 
JENNIFER SMITH 
210 SAGAMORE ST 
HAMIL TON, MA 01982 

Mailing Address: BALSE RANJIT M PAMELA 
PO BOX 308 
HAMIL TON, MA 01936 

Mailing Address: CARNEY JR TIMOTHY JOHN CARNEY 
CASEY ELIZABETH 
188 SAGAMORE ST 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA01982 

Mailing Address: WOITKOWSKI DASEN H. GOULD LAURA 
E. 
200 SAGAMORE ST 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

Mailing Address: WYSOCKI PETER D. WYSOCKI 
JENNIFER SMITH 
210 SAGAMORE ST 
HAMILTON, MA 01982 

Mailing Address: RAY ANDREW THOMAS RAY GWENYTH 
16 BLUEBERRY LN 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

Mailing Address: CEREMSAK MARION S INDIV 
26 BLUEBERRY LN 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

Mailing Address: FOLEY WILLIAM J JR FOLEY MARTHA H 
34 BLUEBERRY LN 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

Mailing Address: DONOVAN BRIAN SHARON TE 
44 BLUEBERRY LN 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

Mailing Address: RYAN JASON BESTER JILL 
39 BLUEBERRY LN 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

www.cai-tech.com 

3/23/2023 
Data shown on this report is for informational purposes only. The Town of Hamilton and CAI Technologies are not responsible 
for any use for other purposes or misuse or misrepresentation of this report. The Town of Hamilton makes no warranties with Page 1 of 2 

regard to the report's accuracy or completeness and assumes no liability associated with use of the data. 

Abutters List Report - Hamilton, MA 



3 00 feet Abutters List Report 
Hamilton, MA 
March 23, 2023 

Parcel Number: 42-0019 
GAMA Number: 42-000-0019 
Property Address: 31 BLUEBERRY LN 

Parcel Number: 42-0021 
GAMA Number: 42-000-0021 
Property Address: 211 SAGAMORE ST 

Parcel Number: 42-0022 
GAMA Number: 42-000-0022 
Property Address: 191 SAGAMORE ST 

Parcel Number: 42-0023 
GAMA Number: 42-000-0023 
Property Address: 175 SAGAMORE ST 

Parcel Number: 42-0063 
GAMA Number: 42-000-0063 
Property Address : 173 SAGAMORE ST 

Parcel Number: 42-0064 
GAMA Number: 42-000-0064 
Property Address : 169 SAGAMORE ST 

Mailing Address: MERCURIO JOSEPH W JR SUSAN A 
31 BLUEBERRY LN 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

Mailing Address: LIDRBAUCH JAMES J & CHARLOTTE 
LIDRBAUCH FAMILY REVO LVG TRST 
211 SAGAMORE ST 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

Mailing Address: ROSENFELDT BERND GAIL M 
191 SAGAMORE ST 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

Mailing Address: COVINGTON J. GRANT COVINGTON 
HILLARY C. 
175 SAGAMORE ST 
SOUTH HAMIL TON, MA 01982 

Mailing Address: WORTHEN II JOSEPH W 
173 SAGAMORE ST 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

Mailing Address: TENSEN NICHOLAS E KATHRYN 
169 SAGAMORE ST 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

www.cai-tech.com 

3/23/2023 
Data shown on this report is for informational purposes only. The Town of Hamilton and CAI Technologies are not responsible 
for any use for other purposes or misuse or misrepresentation of this report. The Town of Hamilton makes no warranties with Page 2 of 2 

regard to the report's accuracy or completeness and assumes no liability associated with use of the data. 

Abutters List Report - Hamilton, MA 



BAl SE RANJIT M 
PAMELA 
PO BOX 308 
HAMILTON, MA 01936 

CARNEY JR TIMOTHY JOHN 
CARNEY CASEY ELIZABETH 
188 SAGAMORE ST 
SOUTH HAMIL TON, MA 01982 

CEREMSAK MARION S INDIV 
26 BLUEBERRY LN 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

COVINGTON J. GRANT 
COVINGTON HILLARY C. 
175 SAGAMORE ST 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

DONOVAN BRIAN 
SHARON TE 
44 BLUEBERRY LN 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

FOLEY WILLIAM J JR 
FOLEY MARTHA H 
34 BLUEBERRY LN 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

LIDRBAUCH JAMES J & CHARL 
LIDRBAUCH FAMILY REVO LVG 
211 SAGAMORE ST 
SOUTH HAMIL TON, MA 01982 

MERCURIO JOSEPH W JR 
SUSAN A 
31 BLUEBERRY LN 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

RAY ANDREW THOMAS 
RAYGWENYTH 
16 BLUEBERRY LN 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

ROSENFELDT BERND 
GAILM 
191 SAGAMORE ST 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

RYAN JASON 
BESTER JILL 
39 BLUEBERRY LN 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

TENSEN NICHOLAS E 
KATHRYN 
169 SAGAMORE ST 
SOUTH HAMIL TON, MA 01982 

WOITKOWSKI DASEN H. 
GOULD LAURA E. 
200 SAGAMORE ST 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

WORTHEN II JOSEPH W 
173 SAGAMORE ST 
SOUTH HAMIL TON, MA 01982 

WYSOCKI PETER D 
WYSOCKI JENNIFER SMITH 
210 SAGAMORE ST 
HAMILTON, MA 01982 

WYSOCKI PETER D. 
WYSOCKI JENNIFER SMITH 
210 SAGAMORE ST 
HAMILTON, MA 01982 



:::0 
0 
OJ 
c.. 
I 

""'C 
c 
C"'" 

n 
I 
ro 
OJ 
"""""i; -· :::::s 



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

TOWN OF HAMILTON -ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

The Town of Hamilton Zoning Board of Appeals will hold a Public Hearing on Wednesday, May 

3, 2023, at 7:00 pm, at Town Hall, 577 Bay Road, Memorial Room, and via Zoom, for the 

property located at 264 Bay Road, Assessor's Map 49, Lot 63, Zoning District B. The applicant is 

Brian Stein, the owner is Mingo Springs LLC. Applicant is seeking a Variance under Zoning Bylaw 

3.1 in order to construct a detached 18' x 26' studio apartment with office space to be located 

behind existing structure which is used as a business. A copy of the application is available for 

review by contacting the Building Department. 

William Bowler, Chair 



April 17, 2023 

William Bowler, Esq. 
Chair, Hamilton Zoning Board of Appeals 
Town Hall 
577 Bay Road 
Hamilton, MA 01982 

Via email: wfbesq@aol.com 

RE: 264 Bay Road ZBA Application - Mingo Springs LLC 

Dear Mr. Bowler, 

I am writing as the agent/manager of Mingo Springs, LLC to authorize Brian Stein of BOS Design, Inc. to 
be my representative regarding the application for 264 Bay Rd before the Hamilton Zoning Board of 
Appeals. 

If you have any questions regarding this matter, please feel free to reach me at 
susanne@slcinteriors.com or 617-921-2331. 

Regards, 

Susanne C. Csongor 
Manager, Mingo Springs, LLC 
264 Bay Rd, Hamilton, MA 

Cc: Mary-Ellen Feener - permitting@hamiltonma.gov 
Richard Maloney- rmalonev@hamiltonma.gov 



TOWN OF HAMILTON 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

APPLICATION FOR ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS HEARING 
To be completed by all Applicants 

Date Submitted: 4/6/23 

Applicant Name: Brian Stein Phone: 978-530-4705 

Applicant Address: 254 Bay Rd, Hamilton, MA 

Applicant respectfully petitions the Board of Appeal for the following: 

That he/she is seeking (check all that apply): 
~Variance: (State Type) RES. DETACHED APT. BEHIND BUSINESS 
DExtension or Alteration of a Non-Conforming Use, Structure, or Lot 
OSite Plan Review 
DAbbreviated Site Plan Review 
DSpecial Permit: (State Type) 
DAppeal of Decision of the Building Inspector 
DConversion for Temporary Living Area 
DComprehensive Permit 
DOther: 

Address of Property if different from Applicant Address above: 264 Bay Rd 

Owner of property if different from Applicant noted above: Mingo Springs, LLC 
Note: If not the owner of the property, applicant must provide proof they are either the holder of a written option to 
purchase the property (or) verification they have authority to act on behalf of the owner of the property. 

Zoning District: B 

Existing Lot Size: 12,200 sf 

State Briefly what structures are on the property: Existing office building - 1. 5 stories, existing 16x24 shed 

State in detail what the petitioner desires to do at said subject property: Raze existing shed. Construct an 18'x26' 

studio apartment/additional office space along 

with a storage area and mechanical space 

State whether any petition as to the said premises has been submitted to this Board within the last five years. If so, 
give details: 

No 

State if any Building Permit has been granted to said premises within the past two years. If yes, give details: 

No 

Signed: fJ~ S~ 
Address: 254 Bay Rd 

Hamilton, MA 

Phone: __ 9_78_-_5_30_-_4_70_5 ___ _ 



APPLICATION CHECK SHEET 
HAMILTON ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

VARIANCE 

8 copies of all Materials. Refer to Instrnction Sheet. 
Section of the Zoning By-Law covering desired Board action(s) 

Section 3.1 - mixed use configuration 

Variance Requested. Check all that apply. 
o Lot coverage 
o Side yard setback 
o Front yard setback 
o Rear yard setback 
o Frontage 
o Parking 
~ Other. Specify. Configuration - Residential studio/apt behind business 

State hardship for which relief is sought: 
o Soil conditions 
o Shape of the land 
o Topography of the land 

Visual Materials Required - Scaled drawings showing at a minimum the following 
1. Site Plan: Include at a minimum: 

o Plan showing total parcel of land 
o Title block with Date 
o Scale 
o North Arrow 
o All property lot lines with dimensions 
o Area of parcel of land 
o All building locations with dimensions of structures and dimensions to lot 

lines 
o Location and use of all adjacent structures with dimensions to lot lines if 

applicant is seeking relief to construct within 20 feet of another building 
o Zoning District including Watershed Protection areas and Historic District 

areas. If property falls within more than one district, plan shall show all 
district lines. 

o Location of wetlands protected areas. 
2. Exterior Elevations of the Building 
3. Scaled floor plan of both new and existing structure 



TOWN OF HAMILTON 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

REQUEST FOR FINDINGS OF FACT 
VARIANCE 

Date Submitted: 4/6/2023 

Applicant Name: Brian Stein - Owner's architecUrepresentative 

Property Located at: 264 Bay Rd 

That literal enforcement of the Zoning By-Law would impose a substantial hardship on the 
petitioner due to circumstances relating to the soil conditions, shape or topography of the land or 
structures especially affecting the subject property but not affecting generally the area in which it 
is located, for the following reasons: 

In this case, it is the configuration that is the hardship. The bylaw allows both residential and business use 

(mixed use), but states the residential use must be "2 units or more above commercial (2nd floor and above). Given 

the current layout of the existing business office uses both 1st and 2nd floors, a 3rd floor addition would be out of 

place on what is a fairly narrow structure. 

That no substantial detriment to the public good would exist were the variance granted, for the 
following reasons: 

The proposed structure would be behind the current office structure and behind a fence along the parking lot. It 
would not be seen from Bay Rd and only seen from the private parking lot and train tracks. 

That no nullification or substantial derogation from the intent or purpose of the Zoning By-Law 
would exist were the variance granted, for the following reasons: 

In the past, prior to the mixed use portion of the bylaw, the Board allowed a single apartment along with a business 
as both are allowed uses in the district. 248 Bay has a single apartment above commercial and 224 Bay has a 
separate residential unit in front of the business. There are a number of examples in the district of single 
apartments, not just two or more. This apartment will mostly be used as an extension of the current business for 
meetings, but there will be occasional use by the owner for staying while she is in town . 

f3~S~ 
Signed:------------

Address: _2_5_4_B_a_y_R_d _____ _ 

Hamilton, MA 

978-530-4705 Phone: ___________ _ 



NOTES: 

AREA 
~0± S.F. 

EXISTING SHED 
TO BE REMOVED 

STORAGE & 
MECHANICAL 

~ 

) 
/ 

' / \/ 
,,", 

___ ,, \ 
/ /<l' 

' 
0'_..,. .A\ 
-?~ - 'b 

<;..).. -r/\ 
ov \.../ 

'.'.) 

v, 

1.) THE EXISTING PROPERTY DOES NOT LIE 
IN THE WATER SHED PROTECTION DISTRICT. 

2.) THE EXISTING PROPERTY DOES NOT LIE IN THE 
HISTORICAL DISTRICT. 

PROPOSED 
STUDIO 

~ - 44. 
~.!Vs. S's. 

j()o ~c~ 
~~))US(: 

/o.!V ~s 
~v/; 0>'1)

~o~ 
, 'I'))-

PLAN OF LAND 
IN 

HAMILTON, MASS. 
SCALE: 1 "=20' o· 1 o· 20· 40 ' 50· 
DATE: APRIL 4, 2023 

OWNER: 
Mingo Springs LLC See 

#264 Bay Road 
Parcel l.D. 55-231 

ZONE: B 
Deed Reference 

Book 25052 Page 428 
Southern Essex Registry of Deeds 

#264 BAY ROAD 
Board of Appeals Case 

JAROSZ LAND SURVEYING 
5 WILSON STREET 

SAUGUS, MA. 01906 
jj 1717@comcast.net 

Phone: (781)-710-8484 



®~~'~"~.%EST ELEVATION 

-
LINE OF EXISTING SHED 
EXTENTS SHOWN DASHED IN 
RED 

NOTE: 
EXACT MATERIAL AND 
WINDOW SPEOFJCATIONS 
TBD 

[]] 
~ 
:!I 

M~ ~~~F 2:!EIGHT 

MEAN ROOF HEIGHT 

/~ 
-;_/--~ -a:-·o-=.·-·-·
Z =-

· - · --~ - - · --· - · . ·--- - . -· 

>~- -: . - -..--~~::. ----- -
. ... ....... ~ 

.-· . , .. .--:. "" 
- L-,-

1.1 LJILJLJI 
! 

-l 

@~S,~,;~}LEVATION 

LINE OF EXISTING SHED 
EXTENTS SHOWN DASHED IN 
RED 

@;'!"'R'~~~~ LOT SIDE - SOUTH ELEVATION 

u 
c E 
c 8 
0) &l g 
·en ~ lt") ·g, 
())1J oR ·'" 

..,.., gE":{l 
v ~ c:g.,, 
<./') fJElf?.o 
-ODE ~1· 
r\ :;!; D °' 
~ N .C: 0. 

V) 
G:::: 

0 
G:::: 
w 
1-
z 
u 
_J 

V) 

< 
::; 



[ i ==== ====== === === == ===~=11 r r== ==== == =========== ===== =~: 
: I ' ~ i I : ; I i : ROOF BELOW : : : : ROOF BELOW : i 
ii :: :: :: 
ii ___ ;~-- ii ii i ! r----- ~ r;-=~---=-:.-=-_-:::_-:_-=-_-=-:.-=-_-=-_-:::_-:.=-_-=-:.-=-:.L:::_~l:1~ _1-::_---:_--:-:-:-:-:--- :_:_:_: __ - -- ,-, 

" ' 1 ' 

" ' " ' H I 

11 
L::::-::.:.:::::.:::::::.:::.:.:i -

I 
L_ 

LOFT 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

J --11---·-
bci 

26'-o~ 

®SECOND FLOOR PLAN 

OPEN TO BELOW 

9 
~ 

0 

N 

9 
:::: 

~ 

9'-8" 

STORAGE/ 
MECHANICAL 

0 '.~R~!. f.L()_OR PLAN 

34'-0" 

10'-6" 7'-0" 

BATH , ~ 

I~j I ~ CONF. AREA/LIVING AREA 

:, LJJ I LINE OF EX 16X2• SHED TO BE u --~~~~~"--------------------l .. ~!!~~~D-~~:-~:~::~D-------
1

11
1 

1
11

1 

1
11

1 

1
11

1 

1
11

1 

1
11

1 

1
11 1 

1JJ1 

1 

II II 
II II 

II II II II 
!lATIO W,(PERGCjlA II 
II II II II 
II II II II 
II II II II 
II II II II 

II 11 II II 11 II II II 11 II 
-~~-~--~-~~-~--~-4~-~--~-4~ -

-----~--·--

26'-0" 

0 S' 10' 

LEGEND 

EXISTING PARTITIONS TO REMAIN 

EXISTING TO BE REMOVED 

NEV-/ WALL CONSTRUCTION 

111 1 
1111 
1111 
1

11
1 

1
11

1 

111 1 
1

11
1 

1JJ1 

~ 

; I II 

u 
c 
c 

E 
0 

.Q) ~ ~ 
"' c - ·c (/) 

(}) 
-0 
(/) 

-0 
_Q 

"' 
~ 
~ 

0"' CJ) 
"O 0 0 ·;:;; 

gE~~ 
:;;_ c:' g -0 
0 2 ~ .0 

~E~ ~-
"' 0"' N .C Q. 

C/) 
~ 

0 
- < 
~ ~ 
w 5 
1-- ~ z ~ 
- I 

ci u ~ 
_J : 
C/) ~ 

°" 0 
0 
-' u... 
0 
UJ 
</) 

0 VJ 
a._z 
0 <( 

°" -' a._ a._ 

~ 
~ 
&<lrrNO: 

Al 



·' 

April 4, 2023 MAP 55 LOT 231 

TOWN OF HAMIL TON 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

CERTIFICATE OF PARTIES IN INTEREST 

Pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 40A, Section 11, the 
undersigned Assessor of the Town of Hamilton, hereby certifies that the 
names and addresses appearing on the list appended hereto are those of 
the: 

(a) abutters 100' 

(b) owners of land directly opposite on any public or private street or way 

X (c) owners of land within 300' of the property line of the property at: 

264 BavRoad 

So. Hamilton 

Dated April 4, 2023 

Prepared by Assessor's Office of the Town of Hamilton. 

Assistant Assessor 



3 00 feet Abutters List Report 
Hamilton, MA 
April 04, 2023 

Subject Property: 

Parcel Number: 55-0231 
CAMA Number: 55-000-0231 
Property Address: 264 BAY RD 

Abutters: 

Pa~elNumbe~ 55~30A 
CAMA Number: 00-000-0000 
Property Address: 42 ASBURY ST 

Parcel Number: 55-230A 
CAMA Number: 00-000-0000 
Property Address: 42 ASBURY ST 

Parcel Number: 55-230A 
CAMA Number: 00-000-0000 
Property Address: 42 ASBURY ST 

Parcel Number: 55-230A 
CAMA Number: 00-000-0000 
Property Address: 42 ASBURY ST 

Parcel Number: 55-230A 
CAMA Number: 00-000-0000 
Property Address: 40 ASBURY ST 

Parcel Number: 55-230A 
CAMA Number: 00-000-0000 
Property Address: 42 ASBURY ST 

Parcel Number: 55-230A 
CAMA Number: 00-000-0000 
Property Address: 42 ASBURY ST 

Parcel Number: 55-230A 
CAMA Number: 00-000-0000 
Property Address: 42 ASBURY ST 

Parcel Number: 55-230A 
CAMA Number: 00-000-0000 
Property Address: 42 ASBURY ST 

Parcel Number: 55-230A 
CAMA Number: 00-000-0000 
Property Address: 40 ASBURY ST 

Mailing Address: MINGO SPRINGS LLC 
264 BAY ROAD 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

Mailing Address: SMITH BRUCE W TR VALIANT! CARMEL 
TR 
421 LINEBROOK RD 
IPSWICH, MA 01938 

Mailing Address: SMITH BRUCE W TR VALIANT! CARMEL 
TR 
421 LINEBROOK RD 
IPSWICH, MA 01938 

Mailing Address: PATTON PARK RL TY TR SMITH BRUCE 
W TRUSTEE 
421 LINEBROOK RD 
IPSWICH, MA 01938 

Mailing Address: PATTON PARK RL TY TR SMITH BRUCE 
W TRUSTEE 
421 LINEBROOK RD 
IPSWICH, MA 01938 

Mailing Address: DANO ARMIDA TRUSTEE DANO 
REAL TY TRUST 
40 ASBURY ST UNIT E 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

Mailing Address: SMITH BRUCE W TR VALIANT! CARMEL 
TR 
421 LINEBROOK RD 
IPSWICH, MA 01938 

Mailing Address: SMITH BRUCE W TR VALIANT! CARMEL 
TR 
421 LINEBROOK RD 
IPSWICH, MA 01938 

Mailing Address: PATTON PARK RL TY TR SMITH BRUCE 
W TRUSTEE 
421 LINEBROOK RD 
IPSWICH, MA 01938 

Mailing Address: PATTON PARK RL TY TR SMITH BRUCE 
W TRUSTEE 
421 LINEBROOK RD 
IPSWICH, MA 01938 

Mailing Address: DANO ARMIDA TRUSTEE DANO 
REAL TY TRUST 

www.cai-tech.com 

40 ASBURY ST UNITE 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

Data shown on this report is for informational purposes only. The Town of Hamilton and CAI Technologies are not responsible 
4/4/2023 for any use for other purposes or misuse or misrepresentation of this report. The Town of Hamilton makes no warranties with Page 1 of 7 

regard to the report's accuracy or completeness and assumes no liability associated with use of the data. 

Abutters List Report - Hamilton, MA 



300 feet Abutters List Report 
Hamilton, MA 
April 04, 2023 

Parcel Number: 55-230A 
CAMA Number: 00-000-0000 
Property Address: 42 ASBURY ST 

Parcel Number: 55-230A 
CAMA Number: 00-000-0000 
Property Address: 42 ASBURY ST 

Parcel Number: 55-230A 
CAMA Number: 00-000-0000 
Property Address: 42 ASBURY ST 

Parcel Number: 55-230A 
CAMA Number: 00-000-0000 
Property Address: 42 ASBURY ST 

Parcel Number: 55-230A 
CAMA Number: 00-000-0000 
Property Address: 40 ASBURY ST 

Parcel Number: 55-230A 
CAMA Number: 00-000-0000 
Property Address: 42 ASBURY ST 

Mailing Address: SMITH BRUCE W TR VALIANT! CARMEL 
TR 
421 LINEBROOK RD 
IPSWICH, MA 01938 

Mailing Address: SMITH BRUCE W TR VALIANT! CARMEL 
TR 
421 LINEBROOK RD 
IPSWICH, MA 01938 

Mailing Address: PATTON PARK RLTY TR SMITH BRUCE 
W TRUSTEE 
421 LINEBROOK RD 
IPSWICH, MA 01938 

Mailing Address: PATTON PARK RLTY TR SMITH BRUCE 
WTRUSTEE 
421 LINEBROOK RD 
IPSWICH, MA 01938 

Mailing Address: DANO ARMIDA TRUSTEE DANO 
REAL TY TRUST 
40 ASBURY ST UNIT E 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

Mailing Address: SMITH BRUCE W TR VALIANT! CARMEL 
TR 
421 LINEBROOK RD 
IPSWICH, MA 01938 ...... .. .. .. .................................... -.......................... -.......... -.............. - .......................... -...... -.............. .. ........................................ -.......... - .. .. .. 

Parcel Number: 55-230A Mailing Address: SMITH BRUCE W TR VALIANT! CARMEL 
CAMA Number: 00-000-0000 TR 
Property Address: 42 ASBURY ST 421 LINEBROOK RD 

IPSWICH, MA 01938 

Parcel Number: 55-230A 
CAMA Number: 00-000-0000 
Property Address: 42 ASBURY ST 

Parcel Number: 55-230A 
CAMA Number: 00-000-0000 
Property Address: 42 ASBURY ST 

Parcel Number: 55-230A 
CAMA Number: 00-000-0000 
Property Address: 40 ASBURY ST 

Parcel Number: 55-230A 
CAMA Number: 00-000-0000 
Property Address: 42 ASBURY ST 

Parcel Number: 55-230A 
CAMA Number: 00-000-0000 
Property Address: 42 ASBURY ST 

Mailing Address: PATTON PARK RL TY TR SMITH BRUCE 
WTRUSTEE 
421 LINEBROOK RD 
IPSWICH, MA 01938 

Mailing Address: PATTON PARK RL TY TR SMITH BRUCE 
WTRUSTEE 
421 LINEBROOK RD 
IPSWICH, MA 01938 

Mailing Address: DANO ARMIDA TRUSTEE DANO 
REAL TY TRUST 
40 ASBURY ST UNITE 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

Mailing Address: SMITH BRUCE W TR VALIANT! CARMEL 
TR 
421 LINEBROOK RD 
IPSWICH, MA 01938 

Mailing Address: SMITH BRUCE W TR VALIANT! CARMEL 
TR 

www.cai-tech.com 

421 LINEBROOK RD 
IPSWICH, MA 01938 

4/4/2023 
Data shown on this report is for informational purposes only. The Town of Hamilton and CAI Technologies are not responsible 
for any use for other purposes or misuse or misrepresentation of this report. The Town of Hamilton makes no warranties with Page 2 of 7 

regard to the report's accuracy or completeness and assumes no liability associated with use of the data. 

Abutters List Report - Hamilton, MA 



300 feet Abutters List Report 
Hamilton, MA 
April 04, 2023 

Parcel Number: 55-230A 
GAMA Number: 00-000-0000 
Property Address: 42 ASBURY ST 

Parcel Number: 55-230A 
GAMA Number: 00-000-0000 
Property Address: 42 ASBURY ST 

Parcel Number: 55-230A 
GAMA Number: 00-000-0000 
Property Address: 40 ASBURY ST 

Mailing Address: PATTON PARK RLTY TR SMITH BRUCE 
W TRUSTEE 
421 LINEBROOK RD 
IPSWICH, MA 01938 

Mailing Address: PATTON PARK RLTY TR SMITH BRUCE 
WTRUSTEE 
421 LINEBROOK RD 
IPSWICH, MA 01938 

Mailing Address: DANO ARMIDA TRUSTEE DANO 
REAL TY TRUST 
40 ASBURY ST UNIT E 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 .................... --............... -.... - .. - .. - - .. - ..... -................ .............. - - .. - .. ...... .... ................ .. ...... -....................................................... - ................ .. 

Parcel Number: 55-230A Mailing Address: SMITH BRUCE W TR VALIANT! CARMEL 
GAMA Number: 00-000-0000 TR 
Property Address: 42 ASBURY ST 421 LINEBROOK RD 

IPSWICH, MA 01938 

Parcel Number: 55-230A 
GAMA Number: 00-000-0000 
Property Address: 42 ASBURY ST 

Parcel Number: 55-230A 
GAMA Number: 00-000-0000 
Property Address: 42 ASBURY ST 

Parcel Number: 55-230A 
GAMA Number: 00-000-0000 
Property Address: 42 ASBURY ST 

Parcel Number: 55-230A 
GAMA Number: 00-000-0000 
Property Address: 40 ASBURY ST 

Parcel Number: 55-0226 
GAMA Number: 55-000-0226 
Property Address: 164 BAY RD 

Parcel Number: 55-0229 
GAMA Number: 55-000-0229 
Property Address: 209 BAY RD 

Parcel Number: 55-0230 
GAMA Number: 55-000-0230 
Property Address: 284 BAY RD 

Parcel Number: 55-0232 
GAMA Number: 55-000-0232 
Property Address: 254 BAY RD 

Mailing Address: SMITH BRUCE W TR VALIANT! CARMEL 
TR 
421 LINEBROOK RD 
IPSWICH, MA 01938 

Mailing Address: PATTON PARK RLTY TR SMITH BRUCE 
W TRUSTEE 
421 LINEBROOK RD 
IPSWICH, MA 01938 

Mailing Address: PATTON PARK RLTY TR SMITH BRUCE· 
WTRUSTEE 
421 LINEBROOK RD 
IPSWICH, MA 01938 

Mailing Address: DANO ARMIDA TRUSTEE DANO 
REAL TY TRUST 
40 ASBURY ST UNITE 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

Mailing Address: 164-176 BAY ROAD, LLC 
1 INN STREET-SUITE 5 
NEWBURYPORT, MA 01950 

Mailing Address: LEARY KEVIN J THERESA 
209 BAY RD 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA01982 

Mailing Address: THE COMMUNITY HOUSE INC. 
284 BAY RD 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

Mailing Address: KROESSER MARY E TR CLARK RL TY 
254 BAY RD 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

www.cai-tech.com 

4/4/2023 
Data shown on this report is for informational purposes only. The Town of Hamilton and CAI Technologies are not responsible 
for any use for other purposes or misuse or misrepresentation of this report. The Town of Hamilton makes no warranties with Page 3 of 7 

regard to the report's accuracy or completeness and assumes no liability associated with use of the data. 

Abutters List Report - Hamilton, MA 



300 feet Abutters List Report 
Hamilton, MA 
April 04, 2023 

Parcel Number: 55-0233 
CAMA Number: 55-000-0233 
Property Address: 224 BAY RD 

Parcel Number: 55-0234 
CAMA Number: 55-000-0234 
Property Address: 188 BAY RD 

Parcel Number: 55-0235 
CAMA Number: 55-000-0235 
Property Address: 227 WILLOW ST 

Parcel Number: 55-0236 
CAMA Number: 55-000-0236 
Property Address: 281 WILLOW ST 

Parcel Number: 55-0237 
CAMA Number: 55-000-0237 
Property Address: 305 WILLOW ST 

Parcel Number: 55-0359 
CAMA Number: 55-000-0359 
Property Address: 248 BAY RD 

Parcel Number: 55-237 A 
CAMA Number: 55-000-237 A 
Property Address: 0 WILLOW & ASBURY ST 

Parcel Number: 55-262A 
CAMA Number: 55-000-262A 
Property Address: 0 MILL ST (OFF) 

Parcel Number: 55-0225 
· CAMA Number: 55-001-0225 
Property Address: 203 WILLOW ST 

Parcel Number: 55-0263 
CAMA Number: 55-001-0263 
Property Address: 300 WILLOW ST (UNIT 1) 

Parcel Number: 55-0225 
CAMA Number: 55-002-0225 
Property Address: 203 WILLOW ST 

Parcel Number: 55-0263 
CAMA Number: 55-002-0263 
Property Address: 300 WILLOW ST (UNIT 2) 

Mailing Address: JOHNSON PAUL B JOHNSON PATRICIA 
A 
453 ESSEX ST 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

Mailing Address: INVESTMENT COMMITTEE OF 
SCANGAS REALTY ASSOCIATES 
330 LYNNWAY 
LYNN, MA 01901 

Mailing Address: C.A.M. HOLDINGS LLC C/O MICHAEL 
PALLAZOLA 
227 WILLOW ST 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

Mailing Address : CLOUTMAN REAL TY LLC C/O KANDIS 
CLOUTMAN 
7 DEER HAVEN RD 
BEVERLY, MA 01915 

Mailing Address: WELCH LAMSON INC 
305 WILLOW ST 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

Mailing Address: TURNBUCKLE REAL TY TRUST 
KROESSER E JAMES TRUSTEE 
254 BAY RD 
S HAMILTON, MA 01982 

Mailing Address: LAMSON GORDON W TR LAMSON 
GREGORY L TR 
THREE TWO THREE WILLOW RL TR 323 
WILLOW ST 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

Mailing Address: WRIGHT EUGENE J SUSAN C 
3 MILL ST 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

Mailing Address: WILLOWDALE ASSOCIATES LLC 
203 WILLOW ST 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

Mailing Address: CURRIE DAVID A SUSAN P TE 
300 WILLOW ST (UNIT 1) 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

Mailing Address: WILLOWDALE ASSOCIATES LLC 
203 WILLOW ST 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

Mailing Address: WATERS JOHN M WATERS ELIZABETH 
0 

www.cai-tech.com 

300 WILLOW ST (UNIT 2) 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

4/4/2023 
Data shown on this report is for informational purposes only. The Town of Hamilton and CAI Technologies are not responsible 
for any use for other purposes or misuse or misrepresentation of this report. The Town of Hamilton makes no warranties with Page 4 of 7 

regard to the report's accuracy or completeness and assumes no liability associated with use of the data. 

Abutters List Report - Hamilton, MA 



3 00 feet Abutters List Report 
Hamilton, MA 
April 04, 2023 

Parcel Number: 55-0225 
CAMA Number: 55-003-0225 
Property Address: 205 WILLOW ST 

Parcel Number: 55-0263 
CAMA Number: 55-003-0263 
Property Address: 300 WILLOW ST (UNIT 3) 

Parcel Number: 55-0225 
CAMA Number: 55-004-0225 
Property Address: 205 WILLOW ST 

Parcel Number: 55-0263 
CAMA Number: 55-004-0263 
Property Address: 300 WILLOW ST (UNIT 4) 

Parcel Number: 55-0225 
CAMA Number: 55-005-0225 
Property Address: 205 WILLOW ST 

Parcel Number: 55-0263 
CAMA Number: 55-005-0263 
Property Address: 300 WILLOW ST (UNIT 5) 

Mailing Address: WILLOWDALE ASSOCIATES LLC 
203 WILLOW STREET 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

Mailing Address: BERRY IV HAROLD J BERRY LAUREN 
BOTHWELL 
300 WILLOW ST 
S. HAMILTON, MA 01982 

Mailing Address: WILLOWDALE ASSOCIATES LLC 
203 WILLOW STREET 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

Mailing Address: KRUPSKY WAYNE E & ANNE L 
300 WILLOW ST (UNIT 4) 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

Mailing Address: WILLOWDALE ASSOCIATES LLC 
203 WILLOW STREET 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

Mailing Address: ROSELUND THEODORE TRUSTEE 
THEODORE ROSELUND IRR 
300 WILLOW ST (UNIT 5) 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 ................ -........ -... ..- .............. - ........ -.... - . -.. -......................... - ............. .. ........ - ....... -- .. .. .. .... -.............. - .. --- ....................................... .. 

Parcel Number: 55-0225 Mailing Address: WILLOWDALE ASSOCIATES LLC 
CAMA Number: 55-006-0225 203 WILLOW STREET 
Property Address: 205 WILLOW ST SOUTH HAMIL TON, MA 01982 

Parcel Number: 55-0263 
CAMA Number: 55-006-0263 
Property Address: 300 WILLOW ST (UNIT 6) 

Parcel Number: 55-0225 
CAMA Number: 55-007-0225 
Property Address: 203 WILLOW ST 

Parcel Number: 55-0263 
CAMA Number: 55-007-0263 
Property Address: 300 WILLOW ST (UNIT 7) 

Parcel Number: 55-0225 
CAMA Number: 55-009-0225 
Property Address: 203 WILLOW ST 

Parcel Number: 55-0225 
CAMA Number: 55-010-0225 
Property Address: 203 WILLOW ST 

Mailing Address: WINGATE GEORGE PENELOPE 
300 WILLOW ST (UNIT 6) 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

Mailing Address: WILLOWDALE ASSOCIATES LLC 
203 WILLOW ST 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

Mailing Address: CARLEO MARK A CATHERINE T 
300 WILLOW ST (UNIT 7) 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

Mailing Address: WILLOWDALE ASSOCIATES LLC 
203 WILLOW ST 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

Mailing Address: WILLOWDALE ASSOCIATES LLC 
203 WILLOW ST 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

www.cai-tech.com 

4/4/2023 
Data shown on this report is for informational purposes only. The Town of Hamilton and CAI Technologies are not responsible 
for any use for other purposes or misuse or misrepresentation of this report. The Town of Hamilton makes no warranties with Page 5 of 7 

regard to the report's accuracy or completeness and assumes no liability associated with use of the data. 

Abutters List Report - Hamilton, MA 



3 00 feet Abutters List Report 
Hamilton, MA 

' April 04, 2023 

Parcel Number: 55-0225 
GAMA Number: 55-08A-0225 
Property Address: 205 WILLOW ST 

Parcel Number: 55-0225 
GAMA Number: 55-08B-0225 
Property Address: 205 WILLOW ST 

Parcel Number: 55-0225 
GAMA Number: 55-11A-0225 
Property Address: 203 WILLOW ST 

Parcel Number: 55-0225 
GAMA Number: 55-11 B-0225 
Property Address: 203 WILLOW ST 

Parcel Number: 55-0225 
GAMA Number: 55-11 C-0225 
Property Address: 203 WILLOW ST 

Parcel Number: 56-0006 
GAMA Number: 56-000-0006 
Property Address: 308-388 BAY RD 

Parcel Number: 56-0032 
GAMA Number: 56-000-0032 
Property Address : 265 BAY RD 

Parcel Number: 56-0033 
GAMA Number: 56-000-0033 
Property Address: 2 CARRIAGE LN 

Parcel Number: 56-0034 
GAMA Number: 56-000-0034 
Property Address: 4 CARRIAGE LN 

Parcel Number: 56-0037 
GAMA Number: 56-000-0037 
Property Address: 5 CARRIAGE LN 

Parcel Number: 56-0055 
GAMA Number: 56-000-0055 
Property Address: 0 MAPLE ST RR OFF 

Parcel Number: 56-032A 
GAMA Number: 56-000-032A 
Property Address: 299 BAY RD 

Mailing Address: MAGNUSON DENTAL GROUP P.C. 
205 WILLOW ST BLDG B 
S HAMILTON, MA 01982 

Mailing Address: WILLOWDALE ASSOCIATES LLC 
203 WILLOW ST 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

Mailing Address: WILLOWDALE ASSOCIATES LLC 
205 WILLOW ST 
S. HAMIL TON, MA 01982 

Mailing Address: WILLOWDALE ASSOCIATES LLC 
205 WILLOW ST 
S. HAMIL TON, MA 01982 

Mailing Address: WILLOWDALE ASSOCIATES LLC 
203 WILLOW ST 
SOUTH HAMIL TON, MA 01982 

Mailing Address: HAMIL TON TOWN OF 
577 BAY RD 
HAMILTON, MA 01936 

Mailing Address: HAMIL TON TOWN OF POLICE & FIRE 
STATION 
265 BAY RD 
SOUTH HAMIL TON, MA 01982 

Mailing Address: WILKINS CHRISTOPHER KHRISTIE 
2 CARRIAGE LN 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

Mailing Address : NEWBOLD STEPHEN M MEREDITH D 
4 CARRIAGE LN 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

Mailing Address: HAYWOOD CARIN J TRUSTEE 
5 CARRIAGE LN 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

Mailing Address: MBTA RE MANAGEMENT DIVISION 
10 PARK PLAZA 
BOSTON, MA 02116 

Mailing Address: HAMIL TON TOWN OF LIBRARY 
299 BAY RD 
SOUTH HAMIL TON , MA 01982 

www.cai-tech.com 

4/4/2023 
Data shown on this report is for informational purposes only. The Town of Hamilton and CAI Technologies are not responsible 
for any use for other purposes or misuse or misrepresentation of this report . The Town of Hamilton makes no warranties with Page 6 of 7 

regard to the report's accuracy or completeness and assumes no liability associated with use of the data. 

Abutters List Report - Hamilton , MA 



3 00 feet Abutters List Report 
Hamilton, MA 
April 04, 2023 

Parcel Number: 56-032B 
GAMA Number: 56-000-032B 
Property Address: 325 BAY RD 

Parcel Number: 61-0058 
GAMA Number: 61-000-0058 
Property Address: RR BAY RD 

Mailing Address: HAMIL TON TOWN OF WINTHROP 
SCHOOL 
325 BAY RD 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

Mailing Address: MBTA RE MANAGEMENT DIVISION 
10 PARK PLAZA 
BOSTON, MA 02116 

www.cai-tech.com 

4/4/2023 
Data shown on this report is for informational purposes only. The Town of Hamilton and CAI Technologies are not responsible 
for any use for other purposes or misuse or misrepresentation of this report. The Town of Hamilton makes no warranties with Page 7 of 7 

regard to the report's accuracy or completeness and assumes no liability associated with use of the data. 

Abutters List Report - Hamilton, MA 



164-176 BAY ROAD, LLC 
HAMIL TON TOWN OF NEWBOLD STEPHEN M 
WINTHROP SCHOOL MEREDITH D 

1 INN STREET-SUITE 5 
325 BAY RD 4 CARRIAGE LN 

NEWBURYPORT, MA 01950 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 SOUTH HAMIL TON, MA 01982 

BERRY IV HAROLD J HAYWOOD CARIN J PATTON PARK RLTY TR 
BERRY LAUREN BOTHWELL TRUSTEE SMITH BRUCE W TRUSTEE 
300 WILLOW ST 5 CARRIAGE LN 421 LINEBROOK RD 
S. HAMIL TON, MA 01982 SOUTH HAMIL TON, MA 01982 IPSWICH, MA 01938 

C.A.M. HOLDINGS LLC INVESTMENT COMMITTEE OF ROSELUND THEODORE 
C/O MICHAEL PALLAZOLA SCAN GAS REAL TY ASSOCIATES TRUSTEE THEODORE ROSELUND 
227 WILLOW ST 330 LYNNWAY 300 WILLOW ST (UNIT 5) 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 LYNN, MA 01901 SOUTH HAMIL TON, MA 01982 

CARLEO MARK A JOHNSON PAUL B SMITH BRUCE W TR 
CATHERINE T JOHNSON PATRICIA A VALIANT! CARMEL TR 
300 WILLOW ST (UNIT 7) 453 ESSEX ST 421 LINEBROOK RD 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 SOUTH HAMIL TON, MA 01982 IPSWICH, MA 01938 

CLOUTMAN REAL TY LLC KROESSER MARY E TR 
THE COMMUNITY HOUSE INC. 

C/O KANDIS CLOUTMAN CLARK RLTY 
7 DEER HAVEN RD 254 BAY RD 

284 BAY RD 

BEVERLY, MA 01915 SOUTH HAMIL TON, MA 01982 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

CURRIE DAVID A 
KRUPSKY WAYNE E & ANNE L 

TURNBUCKLE REAL TY TRUST 
SUSAN P TE 

300 WILLOIJV ST (UNIT 4) 
KROESSER E JAMES TRUSTEE 

300 WILLOW ST (UNIT 1) 254 BAY RD 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

SOUTH HAMIL TON , MA 01982 
S HAMIL TON, MA 01982 

DANO ARMIDA TRUSTEE LAMSON GORDON W TR 
WATERS JOHN M DANO REAL TY TRUST LAMSON GREGORY L TR 
WATERS ELIZABETH 0 

40 ASBURY ST THREE TWO THREE WILLOW RL TR 
300 WILLOW ST (UNIT 2) UNITE 323 WILLOW ST 

SOUTH HAMIL TON , MA 01982 SOUTH HAMIL TON, MA 01982 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

HAMIL TON TOWN OF 
LEARY KEVIN J WELCH 

577 BAY RD 
THERESA LAMSON INC 

HAMILTON, MA 01936 
209 BAY RD 305 WILLOW ST 
SOUTH HAMIL TON, MA 01982 SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

HAMIL TON TOWN OF MAGNUSON DENTAL GROUP P.C WILKINS CHRISTOPHER 
LIBRARY 205 WILLOW ST KHRISTIE 
299 BAY RD BLDG B 2 CARRIAGE LN 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 S HAMILTON, MA 01982 SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 

HAMIL TON TOWN OF MBTA 
WILLOWDALE ASSOCIATES LLC POLICE & FIRE STATION RE MANAGEMENT DIVISION 

265 BAY RD 10 PARK PLAZA 
203 WILLOW ST 

SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 BOSTON , MA 02116 SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 



WILLOWDALE ASSOCIATES LLC 
203 WILLOW STREET 
SOUTH HAMIL TON, MA 01982 

WILLOWDALE ASSOCIATES LLC 
205 WILLOW ST 
S. HAMILTON, MA 01982 

WINGATE GEORGE 
PENELOPE 
300 WILLOW ST (UNIT 6) 
SOUTH HAMIL TON, MA 01982 

WRIGHT EUGENE J 
SUSAN C 
3 MILL ST 
SOUTH HAMILTON, MA 01982 



~ 
w 
00 
)> 
Vl 
C"'" 
c , 
V> ,...... , 
ro 
ro ,...... 
I 

n 
0 
:J ,...... 
:J 
c 
ro 
a. 
""'C 
c 
C"'" 

n 
I 
ro 
OJ , 
:J 



Notice of Public Hearing -Town of Hamilton Zoning Board of Appeals 

A Public Hearing will be held on Wednesday, April 5, 2023, at 577 Bay Road, Hamilton, MA, Town Hall, 

Memorial Room, and via Zoom, to commence at 7:00 p.m., for the Special Permit Application for the 

property owned by Paul Thober, located at 438 Asbury Street, Assessor's Map 37, lot 43. Applicant is 

seeking approval to construct an apartment - Zoning Bylaw 3.6: Accessory Apartment. A copy of the 

complete application is available for review in the Building Department during the regular hours of 

operation of the Town Hall. 

William Bowler, Chair 



APPLICATION CHECK SHEET 
HAMILTON ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

SPECIAL PERMIT 

8 copies of all Materials. Refer to Instruction Sheet. 

~z c__,, 3 ·3 . r!2. ?J 

fCMA 4 7c;
t.:t- ~ (p ( 7 

Section of the Zoning By-Law covering desired Board action(s) _3_.6 _______ _ 

Special Permit Requested. Check all that apply. 
District: Type Use: 
~Residential District o Residential - Single Family w/ 
o Business District 0 Proposed Accessory Apartment 

o Conservancy District o 
o Elder Housing District o 
o Groundwater Protection Overlay o 
o Telecommunications o 
o Other. Specify. o 

Time Period Granted for Permit: 
o Temporary Additional Living Area: 4 years 
o Adult Entertainment Uses: 1 year 
o Special permit will lapse after 1 year if substantial use or construction has not 

commenced except for good cause. 

Visual Materials Required: 
&f Submit at a minimum materials required for Site Plan Review 
o Refer to Specific Sections of the By-Law for additional information regarding each 

district 

Board Reviews Required other than ZBA: 
o Elder Housing District: Requires Planning Board approval 
o Residential District - Golf, tennis, swimming, riding, polo, skiing, skating, all other 

athletic and recreational activities/special events - where charges or admission fees are 
required: Requires Board of Selectmen approval 



TOWN OF HAMILTON 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

APPLICATION FOR ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS HEARING 
To be completed by all Applicants 

Date Submitted: 

Applicant Name: Paul Thober Phone: 978-238-5200 

Applicant Address: 438 Asbury S,treet, Hamilton, MA 01982 

Applicant respectfully petitions the Board of Appeal for the following: 

That he/she is seeking (check all that apply): 
QVariance: (State Type) 
q 'Extension or Alteration of a Non-Conforming Use, Structure, or Lot 
OSite Plan Review 
R Abbreviated Site Plan Review 
~~pedal Permit: (State Type) Accessory Apartment 
DAppeal of Decision of the Building Inspector 
dconversion for Temporary Living Area 
dComprehensive Permit 
gOther: 

Address of Property if different from Applicant Address above: 

Owner of property if different from Applicant noted above: 
Note: If not the owner of the property, applicant must provide proof they are either the holder of a written option to 
purchase the property (or) verification they have authority to act on behalf of the owner of the property. 

Zoning District: R1A 
Existing Lot Size: ±88,800 

State Briefly what structures are on the property: 

Existing 1.5 Story Cottage 

State in detail what the petitioner desires to do at said subject property: 

Convert basement into accessory apartment to provide a rental unit to the housing stock 
for small households. 

State whether any petition as to the said premises has been submitted to this Board within the last five years. If so, 
give details: 

No 

State if any Building Permit has been granted to said premises within the past two years. If yes, give details : 

Yes, a Building Permit was granted for interior re""""t~712 ..--

Signed: - · - i---

Address: 438 Asbury Street 

Hamilton, MA 01982 

Phone: _9_7_8-_3_2_8-_5_2_00 ____ _ 



Date Submitted: 

Applicant Name: 

Applicant Address: 

TOWN OF HAMILTON 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

REQUEST FOR FINDINGS OF FACT 
PERMIT OR SPECIAL PERMIT 

Paul Thober 

438 Asbury Street, Hamilton , MA 01982 

State nature of and location for which Permit or Special Permit is sought: 

Owner seeks to create a 1 bedroom accessory apartment in the basement of this home. 

State how or why the proposed use would be in harmony with the general purpose and intent of 
the Zoning By-Law: 

The proposed apartment will provide a rental unit to the housing stock of the area to meet 
the needs of small households, without expanding the footprint of the existing structure. 

State how or why the specific site is an appropriate location for such use: 

The site has an area of 88,000 SF exceeding the required minimum 10,000 SF lot size for 
an accessory apartment. The siting of the home will allow for a discrete entrance at the rear 
of the home on the basement level and parking for the apartment will be at the rear. 

State whether the specific site has adequate public sewerage and water facilities or suitable soil 
for an on lot sewerage and water systems: 

The Title 5 Inspection of the site notes that the lot has a three-bedroom septic system, 
which will be sufficient to accommodate both the two-bedroom residence and accessory 
one-bedroom apartment. 

State how or why the use as developed will not adversely affect the neighborhood: 

The use will remain residential. The proposal will not modify the exterior and the 
apartment entrance will be at the rear of the home, such that the appearance of the 
home will remain unchanged as a single family residence. 

State why there will not be a nuisance or serious hazard to vehicles or pedestrians using the 
following streets for the purpose of this permit: 
Streets: Asbury Street - The proposal will not change the road for neither pedestrians nor 

vehicles, offstreet parking will be provided off the access road on the Southern end 
of the lot. 



State how and what adequate and appropriate facilities will be provided for the proposed use: 

The proposal will add a parking to the rear of the home to provide direct access to the 
apartment, which can be seen in the site plan. And the roposed apartment will be within the 
guidelines specified in Section 3.6.4. - ---

Signed: __ -__ · _ · _· 1.-....._· _______ _ 

Address: 438 Asbury Street 

Hamilton, MA 01982 

Phone:978-328-5200 



I 

\ --
1 77.00' BARBED WIRE FENC S6S56'32"W ~1--~~~~~~==-~~..-........ .....;,.,;.;..;...:;.:.!.:~..,...--~--~30~8~.16='~~~-r~~~~~-H--~----~..,..._J_.J_~/~P~\FNo 
fl . . . . . . . . . · · · ' · · · •9~ · • • \ FNo 

~ ,, 
j ·. I I ·" . . .. ii::-· . • . • • • \ . • • • • • • • • . • • • • • . • • • . • • ·: \.._SHED 

iEO '. · .va, " 

.. J I ~· I I ' ~,.,_ 

\ .v/J, _Q.=1 12 .\!Ji, ./ 
./ -- · 5' _,,, 

z 

~t 

)> 
en 
ll:J 
c:: 
:::0 
-< 
en 
-r 
:::0 
m 
m 
-r 

) 

~S· r ~ . 
" ' _, J.~· . <& ""· . '\.i . ·o o - ~ 

'\ • o->, (::>~ • ~ 

I \ · f" "~ ' . . C> 
l:'.1 \ . . ~ "' I en I\ . . "h 

;LE :::j ~ i . '.~ - OJ. , . <:: 
J.LJNc 0 -j ~ ·. ".~ 

_.J 

.. .. i !. 

./ 

I 
/ I 

~ --- -- -- --

,,..-

/ \.._ WETLAND Y 
I .UPLAND -- " 

I '\ 
I \ 
I \ 
\ i 
\. - - I 

"'- I 
......... / 

• Proposeo DfiveWay· 

N6Ys8'05"E ./ 321 .74' 

576.74' - ----
490.83' EXIST. 15' WIDE GRAVEL ROAD 

----
RARBED WIRE FENCE 

Accessory 
Apartmen1 

Eniry 

·-----·-------....~"" 

a~ 
ro~ 

~ 

23.8' 

~ 
CA 
cS 
0 

-:l 

1') 
0 
?> 

CJ! 

Existing Driveway 

50.QQ' 

~ 
rri 
0 
-0 

"'1 savoie nolan r::.I.. G) Site Plan 
VY ~=1'-0" 

ARCHIT EC TS LLC 
4 ~nu:}' /\11'"1 ~ :' C""'. · IP!.Wir.tt. '!A 0 1 ~38 . 01R..3:G.~:y; 

438 Asburv Street Residence & Prooosed Accessorv Aoartment 
438 Asbury Street, Hamitton, MA 

February 21 , 2023 



Accessory Apartment Area 

Maximum Area 900 S.F. 

Proposed Area 723 S.F. 

\ 

°'"" I savoie no Ian 
ARCHITECTS LLC 

130 Liberty Street - Danvers, MA 01923 - 978-356-7786 

Parking 

-~~-·~~~~~ 

i-Stor.ag 
8' x 15' 

Mechanical 
11' x 1 O' 

(;;\ Proposed Basement Plan 
\!:.)Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0" 

Parking Access 

Game Room 
13' x 10' 

Up 

1 Hour Fire Rated Wall 

0~ 
438 Asburv Street Residence & Prooosed Accesso 

438 Asbury Street, Hamilton, Ma 
February 21 , 2023 



r-.., 

rr -- - -
I 
I 
I 
I 

l. _ _ __ _ J 
1 1 

I 
I 
I 
1 111 Covered Porch 

:r x 17' I . 

I 
I 
I 
I 

I 1~ LJ L _ ____ l 

I 
I 

Den 
12' x 11' 

Living Room 
12'x18' 

......... 

Kitchen 
12' x 22' 

~· -'"""' --·:lo IF!J Jt;3f ol r· --..... -:.'J 

L: - ----~ 

~ Existing First Floor Plan 
\::}_)Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0" 0~ 

r--..., __1 savoie nolan 438 Asburv Street Residence & Prooosed Accesso 
ARCHITECTS LLC 

130 Liberty Street - Danvers, MA 01923 - 978-356-7786 

438 Asbury Street, Hamilton, Ma 
February 21, 2023 



\ 

Walk-In 
8' x 10' 

-- - :_-::-1 

Master 
Bedroom 

12' x 18' 

----

Bedroom 
14' x 12' 

·-

(A\ Existing Second Floor Plan r::J'\ 
~ Scale: 1/8' = 1'-0' '\[Y~ 

~ savoie no Ian 438 Asbu Street Residence & Pro osed Accesso 
438 Asbury Street, Hamilton, Ma 

A R C H I T E CT S L L C February 21, 2023 
130 Liberty Street - Danvers, MA 01923 - 978-356-7786 



;,; 
::I 
Q 
0 

..J 

Return Document to: 

II II II Ill I Ill I lllllllllll lllll lllll I II lllll Ill 
SO.ESSEX #391 Bk:40921 Pg:467 
05/09/2022 03:24 PM DEED Pg 172 
eRecorded 

MASSACHUSETTS EXCISE TAX 
Southern Essex District ROD 
Date: 05/09/2022 03:24 PM 
ID: 1527054 Doc# 2022050900391 O 
Fee: $2,508.00 Cons: $550,000.00 

----:(Space Above This Line For Recording Data]-------

QUITCLAIM DEED 

We, Nancy P. Ahem and David Ahem, Trustees of the 
PHILIP C. MARCORELLE IRREVOCABLE TRUST 2020 u/d/t dated May 19, 2020 

as evidenced by Certificate of Trust pursuant to 
M.G.L. c. 184, § 35 recorded herewith ("Grantor ") 

for consideration paid, and in full consideration of 
FIVE HUNDRED FIFTY and 00/100 DOLLARS ($550,000.00) 

grant to 

Paul A. Thober and Kristen H. Thober, husband and wife, as tenants by the entirety, of 
438 Asbury Street, Hamilton, Massachusetts 

with QUITCLAIM COVENANTS, 

the land in Hamilton, Massachusetts, with the buildings and improvements thereon, 
situated at and known as 438 Asbury Street, Hamilton, Essex County, Massachusetts, 
being shown as Lot 1 on a plan entitled "Plan of Land for 434-438 Asbury Street, South 
Hamilton, Massachusetts prepared for Philip C. Marcorelle. Scale l" = 40', dated 
February 27, 2014" prepared by The Morin-Cameron Group, Inc. and recorded in the 
Essex South District Registry of Deeds in Plan Book 443, Plan 27. Being a subdivision of 
the land recorded in Plan Book 83, Plan 10 and the land recorded in Plan Number 256 of 
1957. 

Being a portion of the same property conveyed to Grantor from Philip C. Marcorelle by 
deed dated May 19, 2020 and recorded in said registry in Book 38539, Page 255. 

Being a portion of the same property conveyed to Grantor from Philip C. Marcorelle by 
deed dated May 19, 2020 and recorded in said registry in Book 38538, Page 365. 



The premises are conveyed together with the right to use the Un-Named Way as shown on 
the said ~Ian recorded in Plan Book 443, Plan 27 for all purposes for which streets and ways 
are used m the Town of Hamilton, in common with others entitled thereto. 

Said premises are conveyed subject to all 
there be. 

rights and casements of record, if any 

The Gran tor in the execution of this deed, hereby voluntarily releases all rights of 
Homestead as set forth in M.G.L. Chapter I 88 and affirms under the pains and penalties 
of perjury that there are no other person or persons, beneficiary or entity entitled to any 
homestead rights, in the premises conveyed by this Deed, whether created by Declaration 
of Homestead or by operation of law. 

EXECUTED as a sealed instrument this 51k day of May, 2022. 

1J}~,.~ I:;/ J(Jer ~ 
PHILIP C. MARCORELLE IRREVOCABLE TRUST 2020 

@~t~ 5-:~--,;xJ~:;J_ 
~~.rn, Trustee 
PHILIP C. MARCORELLE IRREVOCABLE TRUST 2020 

COMMONWEALTH or MASSACHUSETTS 

Essex. ss. 

On this 5'7>-- day of May, 2022. before me. the undersigned notary public, Nancy P. Ahern and David 
Ahern, personally known to me or proved to me on the basis of satisfacto1y evidence, to be lhe persons 
whose names are signed on the preceding or attached document, and acknowledged to me that each signed 
it voluntarily for its stated purpose as Trustees of the Philip f-M,arcorel ·evocable Trnst 2020, a trust. 

\ / 

[ efjix or imprint offir.: illl seal] 
~M.~bt.i~ 

. Notary Public 
ires: 

~ Donald J. Fournier 1 
- Notary Public 

COMMONWEALTH . OF MASSAC~USETTS 
My Comm1sslon Expires 

August 5, 2027 



.. 

~ Commonwealth of Massachusetts 

Owner 
information is 
required for every 
page. 

Important: When 
filling out forms 
on the computer, 
use only the tab 
key to move your 
cursor - do nol 
use the return 
key. 

~ 
~ 

Title 5 Official lnspectio·n Form 
Subsurface Sewage Disposal System Form • Not for Voluntary Assessments 

438 ASBURY STREET 
Property Address 

DAVID AHERN 
6Wne?9 Name 

HAMILTON 
CityfTown 

MA 
State 

01982 
Zip Code 

11/23/21 
Date or Inspection 

Inspection results must be submitted on this form. I nspection forms may not be altered in any 
way. Please see completeness checklist at the end of the form. 

- --- --- -- -- -
A. Inspector Information 

JAMES H . CURRIER II 
Name of Inspector 

J'S SEPTIC & DRAIN 
Company Name 

131 FOREST STREET 
Company Address 

MIDDLETON MA 01949 
CityfTown Stale Zip Code 
978-77 4-6685 812327 
Telephone Number License Number 

-----
B. Certification 

I certify that: I am a DEP approved system Inspector In full compliance with Section 15.340 of Title 5 
(310 CMR 15.000); I have personally inspected the sew.age disposal system at the property address 
listed above; the information reported below is true, accurate and complete as of the time of my 
inspection; and the inspection was performed based on my training and experience in the proper function 
and maintenance of on-site sewage disposal systems. ,A,fter conducting this inspection I have determined 
that the system: · 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

18] 

D 

D 

D 

Passes 

Conditionally Passes 

Needs Further Evaluation by the Local Approving Authority 

Fails 

11/23/21 
Date 

The system inspector shall submit a copy of this inspection report to the Approving Authority (Board 
of Health or DEP) within 30 days of completing this inspection. If the system has a design flow of 
10,000 gpd or greater, the inspector and the system owner shall submit the report to the appropriate 
regional office of the DEP. The original form should be sent to the system owner and copies sent to 
the buyer, if applicable, and the approving authority. 

Please note: This report only describes conditions at the time of Inspection and under the 
conditions of use at that tlmo. This inspection d1oes not address how the system will perform 
In the future under the same or different condith:ms of use. 

T1!.lo 5 001Ct.JI lnsp«t1on fi e<m Subs1.naco Sowago .O•spos.at Sys ~C!rn • Pag~ I of 18 



-

~ Commonwealth of Massachusetts 

'
~ ·rt Title 5 Official lnspectio·n Form 

_ (:p Subsurface Sewage Disposal System Form - Not for Voluntary Assessments 

- /JI 
~"'' ' 438 ASBURY STREET 

, Prope-rty Address - - - · 

DAVID AHERN 
Owner Owner's. N-eme 
lnfonnation Is 

11/23/21 required for every HAMILTON 
page. City/Town 

MA 
State 

01982 
Zip Code Date of Inspection 

----------------~---

D. System Information 

1. Resldentlal Flow Conditions: 

Number of bedrooms (design): 3 Number of bedrooms (actual): 

DESIGN now based on 310 CMR 15.203 (for exam1ple: 110 gpd x # of bedrooms) : 

Description: 

Number of current residents: 

Does residence have a garbage grinder? 

Does residence have a water treatment unit? 

If yes, discharges to: 

Is laundry on a separate sewage system? (Include I aundry system inspection 
information in this report.) 

Laundry system inspected? 

Seasonal use? 

Water meter readings, if available (last 2 years usag1e (gpd)): 

Detail: 
NO WATER USED FOR 2021, SEE REPORT 

Sump pump? 

Last date of occupancy. 

3 

330 GPO 

0 

D Yes (gJ No 

D Yes r2$l No 

D Yes (8J No 

D Yes (gJ No 

D Yes l8.J No 

23.62 GPO 

0 Yes (8) No 

APPROX 1 
YEAR AGO 

1S1n>pdcx: •rev 7126/?010 T1tk:l 5 Offictal lnspoc.lion FMn Subsu1oc.o SG-vtDQe 01s~nl Syslem • PAon 7 ol 18 



::::r 
OJ 
::l 
a. 
Vl 
t""'T 
~ ro 
ro 
t""'T 

I 
n 
0 
3 
~ ro 
::::r 
ro 
::l 
(,/) -· < ro 
-0 
ro 
~ 

3 



INITIAL PLEADING COVER SHEET HOUSING APPEALS COMMITTEE 
(PER 760 CMR 56.00) 

Developer/ Applicant (Name/ Address): Chairman/Zoning Board (Name/ Address): 

Harborlight Community Partners William Bowler, Chair 
283 Elliot Street Hamilton Zoning Board of Appeals 
Beverly, MA 01915 577 Bay Road 

Hamilton, MA 01936 

Developer/ Applicant's Attorney (Name/ Address/Phone/Fax/Email): Zoning Board's Attorney (Name/Address/Phone/Fax/Email): 

Benjamin B. Tymann, Esq. 
George Pucci, Esq. 

Tymann, Davis & Duffy LLP 
KPLaw,P.C. 
101 Arch Street 

One Boston Place, Suite 2600 
Boston, MA 02110 

Boston, MA 02108 
btymann@tddlegal.com 

GPucci@k-plaw.com 

(617) 933-9490 
617 .654.1718 

Project Name: Asbury Commons 

Address: 466 Highland Street, Hamilton, MA 01982 
Assessor's Map 20, Lot 11 

Type of Development: Rental _x_ Ownership __ Mixed 

Funding Agency/Program: Department ofHoJJSing and Community Development 

Site Approval/Project Eligibility: Yes x__ No Date: December l, 2021 

Total No. Units Appealed to H.A.C.: _4~5~-- No. Affordable (subsidized) Units: -"'4,__,5~--

ZBA Decision: Denial Grant Grant With Conditions _x_ Constructive Grant 

Constructive Denial Other 

Date ZBA Decision Filed With Municipal Clerk: March 2 I , 2023 

Comments: ----------------- - --------- ------

FOR DOCKET CLERK USE ONLY 

Standard Fee Amount: $ _____ _ 

Full Standard Fee enclosed 
with Initial Pleading? Yes No 

Motion on Fee enclosed 
with Initial Pleading? Yes No 

Minimum Fee of $1,500 enclosed 
with Initial Pleading? Yes No 

Docket#: Case#: 

April 10, 2023 

Developer's Attorney's Signature and Date 

Motion on Fee: Granted Denied 

on (date) _____ _ 

Additional Fee beyond $1,500 Minimum 
Fee paid as per Ruling on Motion on Fee: 

amount: $ _____ _ 

on (date): 

HAC Appeal Date: 

! I 

,. 
! 



COMMONWEAL TH OF MASSACHUSETTS 
EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF HOUSING AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

HOUSING APPEALS COMMITTEE 

HARBORLIGHT COMMUNITY 
PARTNERS, INC. 

Applicant/Petitioner, 
v. 

TOWN OF HAMILTON 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS, 

Respondents . 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

No. 2023----

INITIAL PLEADING OF HARBORLIGHT COMMUNITY PARTNERS 

Pursuant to M.G. L. c. 40B § 22 and 760 CMR § 56.06, applicant/petitioner Harborlight 

Community Partner~, Inc. ("Harborlight") appeals from the _decision (the "Decision") of the 

Town of Hamilton Zoning Board of Appeals (the "Board") dated March 13 , 2023, and filed with 

the Hamilton Town Clerk on March 21, 2023, in which the Board approved with conditions a 

comprehensive permit (the "Comprehensive Permit") for a 45-unit multifamily rental housing 

development (the "Project"). 

The Board approved the Project subject to 54 conditions, including several conditions 

with multiple sub-conditions (the "Conditions"). Harborlight submits that ce1iain of the 

Conditions, if strictly enforced, would render the Project uneconomic and that ce1iain of the 

Conditions require clarification in order to make them reasonable, legally tenable, and/or 

enforceable. Accordingly, the Conditions identified below are not consistent with local needs and 

should be stricken from the Decision or modified. In fmiher suppmi of this appeal, Harbor light 

states as follows: 

1 



PARTIES 

1. Harborlight is a non-profit organization organized under the laws of the 

Commonwealth of Massachusetts. Harborlight maintains a place of business at 283 Elliot Street, 

Beverly, Massachusetts. 

2. William Bowler, David Pe1inchief, and Bmce Gingrich were, at all relevant times, 

the presiding members of the Board designated to hear an~ act on Harborlight's Comprehensive 

Permit application. The Board has an address of 577 Bay Road, Hamilton, MA. 

STATEMENT OF PRIOR PROCEEDINGS 

3. By application to the Board dated March 9, 2022 (the "Application") Harborlight 

sought a Comprehensive Permit pursuant to M.G.L. c. 40B, § 20-23 ("Chapter 40B") in 

connection with the Project entailing the construction and development of 45 units of 

multifamily affordable housing and related amenities on approximately 23 acres of land located 

at 466 Highland Street/421 Asbury Street, in Hamilton, Massachusetts, at Assessor's Map 20, 

Lot 11 (the "Property"). The Property is cunently undeveloped and used for agricultural 

purposes. The Project proposes a 68-space parking lot with landscaping. All units will be 

affordable, reserved for households with incomes of less than 60% of the area median income. 

4. Following due notice under the Open Meeting Law, M.G.L. c. 39 §§ 23A-23B, 

and M. G.L. c. 40A, § 11, the public heaiing regarding the Application was opened on April 6, 

2022, and conducted fiuiher public hearing sessions on May 4, 2022, June 1, 2022, July 6, 2022, 

August 3, 2022, September 7, 2022, October 5, 2022, November 2, 2022, and January 4, 2023 . 

The Board closed the public heating on January 4, 2023. It held a public deliberative session on 

March 1, 2023. 

2 



5. The Board voted 3-0 at its deliberative session on March 1, 2023 to grant a 

Comprehensive Permit in accordance with the terms and conditions later memorialized in its 

Decision. 

6. The Decision to approve the Application subject to the Conditions was submitted 

to the Hamilton Town Clerk's Office on March 21, 2023. A certified copy of the Decision is 

attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

JURISDICTION AND STANDING 

7. Harborlight satisfies the jurisdictional requirements for this appeal as set forth in 

760 CMR 56.05(9)(b) in that it contends it has been granted a Comprehensive Permit by the 

Board containing Conditions and requirements that, if strictly enforced, would render the Project 

uneconomic, and/or that are othe1wise unacceptable, unreasonable, or legally untenable. 

8. Harborlight also satisfies applicable jurisdictional requirements in that it has 

obtained a Project Eligibility Letter ("PEL") from the Department of Housing and Community 

Development ("DHCD") which provides prima facie evidence that it has satisfied the 

requirements of 760 CMR 56.04(1). Moreover, each constituent jurisdictional element is met: 

(1) Harborlight is a nonprofit organization; (2) the Project is fundable by a subsidizing agency 

under a low- or moderate-income housing subsidy program; and (3) Harborlight controls the 

Prope1ty site. 

9. The Town of Hamilton has not met any of the statutory minima or other crite1ia 

set forth in G. L. c. 40B, §20 or 760 CMR 56.03 for low and moderate income housing, 

including the statutmy minima of 10% affordable housing. As of December 1, 2020, Hamilton 

had an affordable housing percentage of 3.1 % as determined by the Subsidized Housing 

Inventmy maintained by DHCD. 

3 



OBJECTIONS TO THE DECISION 

10. Harborlight challenged certain of the Conditions as follows: 

1. Harborlight objects to Condition A.2 insofar as it will render the Project 

uneconomic. While Harborlight intends to comply with the subsidy program's requirement for 

affordability at 60% of area median income ("AMI"), the Comprehensive Pe1mit should only set 

a minimum AMI requirement of 80%. 

11. Harborlight objects to Condition A. 7 because the condition is inconsistent with 

law in that it purports to require affnmative marketing of local preference, which marketing is 

inconsistent with applicable federal and state law. Moreover, the condition addresses a su,bject 

matter which is within the authority of the subsidizing agency. Harborlight seeks modification of 

the condition to state that Harborlight will pursue local preference in occupancy through the 

subsidizing agency, DHCD. 

111. Harborlight objects to Condition B.6 insofar as prohibiting a for-profit successor 

owner will render the project uneconomic. Further, Condition B.6 is inconsistent with law, in 

that it addresses a subject matter that is within the authority of the subsidizing agency. 

iv. Harborlight objects to Condition B.13 insofar as prohibiting a Town of Hamilton 

municipal entity from potentially placing antennas or other telecommunications equipment on 

buildings in the Project will render it uneconomic. 

v. Harborlight objects to Condition B.18 and B.19 as unreasonable and rendering the 

Project uneconomic to the extent that the conditions' erosion and sedimentation control 

requirements conflict with the requirements of the Project's Stormwater Pollution and Prevention 

Plan ("SWPPP"). Harborlight intends to follow the applicable NPDES requirements in the 

SWPPP. 

4 



VI. Harborlight objects to condition B.29's unconditional prohibition against blasting 

as unreasonable and potentially rendering the Project uneconomic. While Harborlight anticipates 

no blasting will be required, should further engineering analysis during site development 

detennine otherwise, this condition would pose a serious obstacle to the constrnction of the 

Project. Harborlight seeks clarifying language in this condition that would allow blasting subject 

to all local and state laws and regulations governing noise, vibration, and other abutter and 

worker protection standards. 

VII. Harborlight objects to condition C.1.c as umeasonable and rendering the Project 

uneconomic to the extent that no building pe1mit can issue until the Regulatmy Agreement is 

signed and recorded. The Regulato1y Agreement will be signed at the closing on the Property, 

and a building pe1mit is required to close. Harborlight requests clarifying language that allows 

the building permit to issue subject to the subsequent execution and recording of the Regulatory 

Agreement. 

vm. Harborlight objects to Condition D.2 because requiring the Applicant to complete 

all landscaping prior to the issuance of the Ce1iificate of Occupancy will render the project 

uneconomic, and is unreasonable as a condition. 

IX. Harborlight objects to Condition D.4 because it renders the Project uneconomic, 

absent claiification that the Town will accept a General Contractor Bond or a covenant pursuant 

to G.L. c. 41 §§ 81U to satisfy the requirements of this condition, and that the Town will not 

require Harborlight to post a cash bond so long as the afore-mentioned types of secmity are 

satisfied. 

5 



x. Harborlight objects to Condition D.6.b because requiring an as-built plan prior to 

any Ce1iificate of Occupancy issuing will render the project uneconomic, and is unreasonable as 

a condition. 

x1. Harborlight objects to Condition E.2 because requiring trash pick-up to be limited 

to just once per week, rather than more frequently as needed (e.g., when residents move in or 

out), renders the Project uneconomic, and is unreasonable as a condition. 

xn. Harborlight objects to Condition E.3 insofar as requiring Harborlight to pay the 

amount specified without claiifying that the condition is contingent on the full sidewalk project 

budget being available in advance, and on the Town and Canterbrook Village also. agreeing to 

fund their respective portions, is Unreasonable as a condition and renders the Project 

unecononnc. 

RELIEF SOUGHT 

11. Pursuant to 760 CMR 56:07(5)(a)(l), Hai·borlight hereby requests that the 

Committee find that: 

a. The identified Conditions of the Decision render the Project uneconomic; are not 

consistent with local needs; are unacceptable, unreasonable, or legally untenable; have not been 

applied as equally as possible to the Project as compared with market-rate housing; and/or are 

disproportionate to the actual impacts of the Project; and 

b . That those Conditions which render the Project uneconomic and ai·e not consistent 

with local needs and that those Conditions which are unacceptable, unreasonable, legally 

untenable, have not been applied as equally as possible to the Project as compared with 

unsubsidized housing, or are disproportionate to the actual impacts of the Project must be 

stricken from the Decision, or modified as detailed herein. 

6 



NAME AND ADDRESS OF APPLICANT/PETITIONER 

12. The name and address of Applicant/Appellant is as follows : 

Harborlight Community Paitners, Inc. 
283 Eliot Street 
Beverly, MA 01915 

NAME AND ADDRESS OF APPLICANT/PETITIONER'S COUNSEL 

13. The Applicant's attorneys, upon whom service of any papers in connection with 

this appeal may be made, is as follows: 

Benjamin B. Tymann, Esq. 
Tymann, Davis & Duffy LLP 
One Boston Place, Suite 2600 
Boston, MA 02108 
(617) 933-9490 

APPLICATION AND DECISION OF THE BOARD 

14. A copy of the Application is being provided to the Committee with this initial 

pleading and a certified copy of the Decision is attached hereto as Exhibit A . 

Dated: April 10, 2023 

Respectfully submitted, 

HARBORLIGHT COMMUNITY PARTNERS, INC. 

By its attorney, 

Benjamin B. Tymann, (BBO# 652011) 
btymann@tddlegal.com 
Tymann, Davis & Duffy LLP 
One Boston Place, Suite 2600 
Boston, MA 02108 
Tel. 617.933 .9490 

7 



EXHIBIT A 



...... t ':~ E: t_.~ i 2 I \/ i: J 1 

I U \./\/ /'·.J c i i~-; i- ~ v u (• ~ ,11 • ·-· ~ .. ;,. ' :, (\ 
I 11 'I!\ I L l () i\ 1 i\i! .,:, 

~ I J l >" ~ i ~ 

l'OWN OF IIAlVllLTON 
Zoning Boa1'd of Appeals 

577 Bay Road 
Hamjlt9n, MA 01936 

2023 Nt!N 2 I PN I: .37 

DECISION ON APPLICATION FOR COMPREHENSIVE-PERMIT 
G,L; c. 40B, §§ io~23 

APPLICANT: 

SUBJECT PROPERTY: 

Harborlight Coinii:i.unicy Partners 
283 Eliot Street . 
Bevetly1 MA01915 

46.6 Highland Street, Haniilton, MA 01982 
Assessor's Map 20, Lot i 1 

I. PROCEDURAL lliSTOEY 

1. The Applicant, HatborHght Corpmunity Pa1iners ("Applic~nt"), filed an 
applicatio'n for a Comprehensive Pennit o:o. or about March 8, 2022 with the Zoning 
Board of Appeals ("Board"). The Application proposes ·cortst1.,uctio1J of a 45-unlt1nulti
f1:1mily reside11tial huildit1g with acco:m,panying infrastructure, a 68-space parking loti and 
associat<i;d hm.d$.capirtg ("Projects'). · 

2. . The Pi"oject is loc~ted at 46.6 Highlan:d Street, which is a 104-acre parcel 
located in the RM lB zon'hi:g qistrjct. The Applioati.t has ail option to pui·chase 4.89acres ' . 
of the 104.:.acre parcel wfth the owner of the patcel~ Btittol} J,=i'atriily; LLC, which has 
conse11ted to the filing ofthe Applicant's GP.apter 40B applicatj,on. The AppHcant 
proposes that the4.89 actes be s~bdivided from the 104-acrepai·cel for the Ptoject. The 
Applicant has .. also obtained agreement for ai.i easeinerit on an addition.al 19 acres for total 
aggregated lan:d ai'ea 6f 2.3 acres to meet petfoniJ.ance standards for an on-site septic 
system. 

3. T.Q.e Board ppened the public heating on the Application on April 6, 2022, 
and conducted further pubhc heating sessions on May 4, 202~, June 1, 2022, July 6, · 
2022, August 3, 2022, Septenibe1; 7, 20?2, October 5i 20221 Nove1J1ber 2, 2022, and 
Jao.ua\y 4, 2023. The Board, after ope:µing the pu'blic heai'irtg, -Voted to dedate and 

. notify .the Massachusetts Department of Housing and Commwtity D~velopment 
C''PHCD")of entitlement to certification of compiiance wtth an approved Bousing 
Ptodubtion Plan, DHCD denied thiS request by notice dated April ·11, 2022. The Beard 
voted not ·to appeal the·DtICD deeision and proceeded with the public hearing oi1 the 
dates referenced ~bove. The Boatd Closed the public hearing on January 4, 2023, and 



Decision on Application for Comprehensive Pe1mit 
Harborlight Community Paiiners 
466 Highland Street, Hamilton, MA 
March 13, 2023 
Page 2of16 

conducted deliberations on March 1, 2023, at which time it voted to grant the Project 
with conditions as set forth in this decision. 

4. The Applicant was represented during the public hearing by Andrew 
DeFranza ofHarborlight Community Partners, and Attorney Benjamin Tyman. The 
Applicant's development team consists of Hancock Associates, Danvers, MA, on 
engineering, SV Design, LLC, Beverly, MA on architecture, BSC Group, Boston, MA on 
landscape architecture, and Greenman-Pedersen, Inc., Wilmington, MA, on traffic. 

5. The Board's peer review consultant was GM2, Inc., with offices 
throughout New England, which provided comments and recommendations concerning 
site plan review and engineering, including septic system design, groundwater protection, 
stonnwater management, and h'affic. 

6. The Board also received public comment on the Project during the course 
of the public hearing, including c01mnent from Attorney Dan Hill who represents abutter, 
Village at Center Brook Fann. 

II. FINDINGS ON JURISDICTIONAL ISSUES 

7. The Applicant is a qualified non-profit and eligible to apply for a Chapter 
40B pe1mit under a Project Eligibility Letter issued by DHCD dated December 1, 2021, 
approving the Project under the Low-Income Housing Tax Credit program. 

8. In accordance with the Project Eligibility Letter, the Project shall consist 
of 45 units of rental housing which shall be affordable at no more than 60% of area 
median income, and which shall count on the DHCD's Subsidized Housing Inventmy 
("SHI") for the Town of Hamilton. The Project shall consist of 10 one-bedroom units, 25 
two-bedroom units, and 10 three-bedroom units. 

9. Approval of this Project with conditions is consistent with local needs, as 
defined under the Massachusetts Comprehensive Permit Law, G.L. c. 40B, §§ 20-23, and 
760 CMR 56.00, et seq. 

III. FINDINGS OF FACT 

10. The Project is to be located on 421 Asbmy Street. The building site 
cu1Tently consists of farmland. Access and egress are proposed via one new full-access 
driveway via curb cut on the northeast side of Asbury Street, approximately 1,000 feet 
west of Canter Brook Lane. 



Decision on Application for Comprehensive Permit 
Harborlight Community Paliners 
466 Highland Street, Hamilton, MA 
March 13, 2023 
Page 3of16 

11. The Project consists of a new 45-unit multi-family building with 
appmtenant parking and utilities as shown on the Concept Site Plan, 466 Highland Street 
prepared by Hancock Associates dated 1/26/22. The Project provides parking for 68 
vehicles, including 6 handicap accessible pursuant to Massachusetts Architectural Access 
Board guidelines. Site access/egress shall include a 20-foot wide fire access lane looping 
around the rear of the building to provide egress for emergency vehicles. A 4-foot-wide 
stone dust walking trail shall also be furnished around the building and parking lot. 

12. The Project is bounded by Asbury Street to the southwest, a 20-foot wide 
right of way and residential development to the southeast and maintained agricultural 
land around the remainder of the Project location. Frontage for the Project is located 
along Asbury Street. The Project site is bounded by a 25-foot to 50-foot-wide swath of 

. trees from the western sideline of Asbury Street up to the eastern corner of the site 
location at the 20-foot right of way. 

13. The Project wiff generate 9900 gallons of sewage per day which will be 
treated and discharged on site, requiring Board of Health approval. The on-site septic 
system shall consist of a subsurface stone and pipe leaching field where effluent is 
discharged to groundwater. The Project site is located within a Zone II Drinking Water 
Supply District limiting the amount of nitrogen that can be discharged to groundwater, 
among other public health requirements. 

14. The Applicant shall comply with any conditions or requirements imposed 
by the Board of Health and/or its agent. 

15. The 4.89-acre Project site is located on the north side of Asbury Street 
cunently in agricultural use as a hayfield. Stormwater flows to the northeast of the site 
onto abutting agricultural land which is also cunently a hayfield. Stormwater 
management must meet MassDEP Stormwater Regulations requiring that stmmwater be 
properly treated, and increased flows mitigated to maintain the quality and quantity of 
stormwater after completion of the Project. 

16. Approximately one-third of the building site will become impervious area 
consistillg of the building and parking area. Stormwater from these impervious areas will 
be collected_ in a sto1m drain system on the northeast border of the site. The infiltration 
system will maintain water quality and mitigate for increases in flow as further described 
in the Stonnwater Management Rep01t prepared by Hancock Associates, dated 2/18/22, 
as revised through 10/21/22, which has been reviewed and commented on by the Town's 
Health Agent and the Board's peer reviewer resulting in the final amended design 
referenced below which meets the requirements of Title V and the MassDEP Sto1mwater 
Management Standards, and the requirements of the Town of Hamilton St01mwater 
Management Permit Rules & Regulations. 



Decision oh Application for Comprehensive Pe1mit 
Harborlight Community Partners 
466 Highland Street, Hamilton, MA 
March 13, 2023 
Page 4of16 

17. Drinking water and water for fire suppression shall be via connection to 
the Hamilton Water Supply System in Asbmy Street. Gas, electric, telephone and cable 
will be coordinated with private utility providers but shall be depicted on the Final Plans 
defined below. 

18. Design and construction of the infrastrncture needed for the water 
connection shall be at the Applicant's sole expense. The Applicant shall comply with all 
local requirements and specifications concerning municipal water supply, including 
connection and user fees, other local charges or local data or testing requirements. 

19. The Project is located in Single Residential District (Rl-B) and requires 
zoning waivers to allow for multi-family use, and reduced lot area per dwelling units. 
The Project meets all other zoning. requirements including setback and height 
requirements. 

20. The Project was amended to eliminate the need for a waiver of the special 
pe1mit requirement of the Town's Groundwater Protection Overlay District, to allow 
impervious smfaces covering 60,525 square feet, or 28.4% of the lot. The Applicant's 
land aggregation plan has lessened the impervious surface area to 5.8% of the total lot 
area, which is less than the 15% that would require a special pennit. 

21. Based on review and comments from the Board's peer review consultants, 
as well as comments from other local boards and officials, the Project, as conditioned 
below, is consistent with local needs as required under the Comprehensive Permit Law. 

IV. DECISION 

1. Based on the foregoing findings, the Board grants the Comprehensive 
Pe1mit subject to the following conditions: 

V. CONDITIONS 

A. REGULATORY CONDITIONS 

1. The total number of dwelling units that may be constmcted is 45 units 
with a mix of 10 one-bedroom units, 25 two-bedroom units, and 10 three-bedroom units 
as shown on the Approved Plans referenced in Condition V.B. l. below. 

2. The 45 units shall consist of rental housing. ·All of the units shall be 
affordable at no more than 60% area median income and shall comply with all DHCD 
qualified subsidy requirements and shall be eligible for inclusion in the Town of 
Hamilton's Subsidized Housing Inventory ("SHI") with DHCD. 

... 



Decision on Application for Comprehensive Permit 
Harborlight Community Partners 

. 466 Highland Sh·eet, Hamilton, MA 
March 13, 2023 
Page 5of16 

3. The 45 affordable units shall remain affordable and eligible for inclusion 
in the Town's SHI in perpetuity or for so long as the Project is not in compliance with the 
Town of Hamilton Zoning Bylaws so that the units continue to serve the public purpose 
for which this permit was granted under the Massachusetts Comprehensive Permit Law. 

4. The Applicant shall execute a Regulat01y Agreement with the subsidizing 
agency as required by the Comprehensive Permit Law and submit annual repolis to the 
subsidizing agency in accordance with the Regulatory Agreement. 

5. The Applicant shall comply with all requirements of the Regulato1y 
Agreement for ensuring that the affordability requirements remain in pface, and shall 
provide the Town with any and all inf01mation necessa1y to maintain and enforce 
affordability restrictions in accordance with paragraph V.A.3. 

6. The Applicant shall develop a marketing plan for the Project for review 
_and approval by the subsidizing agency and shall comply with all affirmative action or 
other requirements imposed by state or federal regulation. 

7. The Applicant shall market the initial rent-up of the Project under a local 
preference approved by the subsidizing agency, and shall assist the Town in submitting 
evidence necessary to support the local preference requirement. 

8. The Town, by and through the Board or its designee, shall have continuing 
jurisdiction to ensure compliance with the te1ms and conditions of this decision. 

9. The Applicant shall obtain Final Approval from the subsidizing agency 
pursuant to 760 CMR 56.04(7) and shall provide evidence of such Final Approval to the 
Building Commissioner and the Board prior to receiving any building petmit for the 
Project. 

B. GENERAL CONDITIONS 

1. The Project shall be constrncted substantially in compliance with the 
following plans which shall be considered the Approved Plans ("Approved Plans") for 
the Project: 

a. 

b. 
2/25/22; 

Architectural Plans prepared by SV Design dated 2/18/22; 

Landscaping Plan prepared by SV Design and BSC Group dated 

I 
I 

I 
I. 



Decision on Application for Comprehensive Permit 
Harborlight Community Partners 
466 Highland Street, Hamilton, MA 
March 13, 2023 
Page 6of16 

c. Septic System Design Plan prepared by Hancock Associates dated 
10/26/22, and revised Septic System Design Plan dated 12/9/22; 

d. 

d. 

e. 
10/25/22. 

Preliminary Site and Utility Plan prepared by Hancock Associates 
dated 2/18/22, as revised through 10/25/22; 

Mounding Analysis dated 9/27/22; 

Conceptional Subdivision Plan by Hancock Associates dated 

2. Minor changes to the Approved Plans may be submitted to the Building 
Commissioner who shall have authority to approve such changes as immaterial to the 
tenns and conditions of this decision. If the Building Commissioner determines the 
proposed changes do not comply with the tenns and conditions of this decision, the 
Applicant may seek modification with the Board pursuant to 760 CMR 56.05(11). 

3. The Applicant has requested, and the Board has granted, certain specified 
waivers from the Hamilton Zoning Bylaw, as reflected in Exhibit A. No other waivers 
are granted. If the Approved Plans or Final Plans (defined below) show the need for a 
waiver not set fmih in Exhibit A, the Applicant must seek approval :from the Board 
pursuant to the provisions of760 CMR 56.05(11). No waiver of building permit or . 
inspection fees, water connection fees, or other fees or charges of any kind have been 
granted. 

4. But for the two waivers granted in Exhibit A, the Applicant shall comply 
with the Hamilton Zoning Bylaws, and any and all local bylaws, codes, rules, or 
regulations of the Town of Hamilton. 

5. In addition to the tenns and conditions of this decision, the Project shall 
comply with all state and federal laws, codes, regulations and standards applicable to the 
Project. 

6. The tenns and conditions of this decision shall be binding on any successors 
or assigns of the Applicant, and the terms and conditions shall rnn with the land. The non
profit and affordability requirements shall apply to any successor in interest regardless of 
the sale, transfer or assignment of the Project. 

7. The access/egress roadway, stormwater management and drainage systems, 
·septic and water infrastrncture, arid any and all other Project related infrastrncture or 
in;lprovements shall remain private. The Town of Hamilton shall have no obligations or 



Decision on Application for Comprehensive Permit 
Harborlight Community Paitners 
466 Highland Street, Hamilton, MA 
March 13, 2023 
Page 7of16 

legal responsibility for the maintenance of the foregoing, including but not limited to snow 
and trash removal and landscape maintenance. 

8. The interior and exterior of all buildings and structures shall be constructed 
substantially as represented in the Approved Plans. · 

9. All utility work and roadwork within any public right of way shall be 
perfmmed and conducted in conformance with the regulations of the Town and MassDOT, 
if applicable, including requirements for street opening permits, curb cuts, or trench 
pe1mits. Contractors shall be duly licensed as required by the Town. All such work shall 

· be perfonned in accordance with the Approved Plans. 

10. The Applicant shall provide professional management of the Project, 
including 24/7 monitoring of the Project, either by on-site management or by an off-site 
management entity that is available by phone 24/7. The Applicant shall post the name and 
telephone number of the manager in a prominent place within the building and shall 
provide the Board and Town with details concerning prope1ty management in wiiting. 

11. The Project shall be sprinklered in accordance with applicable state and 
NFPA standards, including attics and storage spaces. The Applicant shall submit final fire 
alann/sprinlder plans in compliance with applicable codes to the Fire Chief for review and 
approval. 

12. All grading shall be consistent with the Approved Plans. 

13. There shall be no telecommunication equipment, cell anays or antenna 
affixed to the roof or sides of the building. 

14. The Board and its agents may enter the Project site dming construction of 
the Project (subject to conformance with applicable health and safety requirements, 
including, but not limited to hard hat, safety glasses, reflective vests and work boot 
requirements), upon reasonable notice, to determine compliance with this decision. 

15. The Applicant shall comply with orders issued by the Building Inspector 
regarding construction of the Project, subject to the Applicant's rights of appeal under 
applicable law. 

16. Prior to starting any activity authorized under this decision ("Authmized 
Activity"), including but not limited to clearing, excavation, or other land disturbing 
activities precedent to construction of the Project, in-espective of whether the work requires 
a building pe1mit, the Applicant and the general contractor shall hold a preconstrnction 
meeting chaired by the Building Inspector, with municipar staff and officials of his choice, 



I 
' 
) 

Decision on Application for Comprehensive Pe1mit 
Harborlight Community Partners 
466 Highland Street, Hamilton, MA 
March 13, 2023 
Page 8of16 

to review this decision, the Approved Plans, and proposed implementation. In conjunction 
with this meeting, the Applicant shall provide the Building Inspector with the following: 

a. A lighting plan which conforms with all state, federal or local 
regulations which shall adequately ensure against light trespass issues or nuisance 
conditions. · 

b. Final engineering drawings and plans ("Final Plans") that conform 
to all tenns and conditions of this comprehensive permit and all conditions and 
requirements of other permitting agencies or officials having jurisdiction. 

c. Peer review fees reasonable and necessa1y to assist the Building 
Inspector in confirming compliance with the terms and conditions of this decision 
in the Final Plans. 

17. Prior to staiting any Authorized Activity, the Applicant shall provide to the 
Building Inspector: 

a. the company affiliation, name, address and business telephone 
number of the constrnction superintendent who shall have overall responsibility for 
construction activities on the Property; 

b. a copy of a municipal lien certificate showing that all taxes, 
assessments and charges due on the Project site have been paid; 

c. ce1tification that all required federal, state and local licenses and 
pe1mits have been obtained; 

d. . . proof that 11Dig-Safe11 has been notified at least 72 hours prior to the 
start of any site work; 

e. proof that street signage is in place to ensure that emergency 
personnel can locate the site to provide emergency services; and 

f written notice of at least 48 hours. If activity on site ceases for 
longer than one month, 48 hour written notice shall be given prior to restarting 
work. 

18. Erosion and sedimentation control measures shall include the following: 

a. The contractor shall have a stockpile of materials required to control 
erosion on-site to supplement or repair erosion control devices, including but not 
limited to straw wattles, catch basin filter bags and Ciushed stone; 



Decision on Application for Comprehensive Permit 
Harborlight Community Partners 
466 Highland Street, Hamilton, MA 
March 13, 2023 
Page 9 of16 

b. The contractor is responsible for erosion control on site and shall 
utilize erosion control measures where needed, regardless of whether the measures 
are specified on the Approved Plan or in this decision; 

c. Materials such as gravel to be removed shall be stockpiled, 
separating the topsoil for future use on the site; 

d. Erosion controls shall be utilized on the stockpiles if they are to 
remain on site for more than three weeks; 

e. If intense rainfall is anticipated, the installation of supplemental 
straw bale dikes, silt fences, or c:innored dikes shall be implemented. 

19. During c.onshuction, the Applicant or its agent shall conduct and document 
inspections of all erosion conh·ol measures no less than weekly, and prior to and following 
anticipated stonn events, the purpose of which is to determine the overall effectiveness of 
the erosion and sedimentation conh·ol measures and for implementation of additional 
control measures as needed. Upon completion of all work on Property and prior to As
Built approval, all debris and consh·uction materials shall be removed and disposed of in 
accordance with state laws and regulations, and the Board shall be notified in writing of the 
final disposition of the materials. ! . 

20. The Applicant shall ensure implementation of the following requirements 
concerning landscaping/seeding in com1ection with Authorized Activity: 

a. Landscaping/seeding shall be performed as soon as possible to 
provide pe1manent stabilization ·of disturbed surfaces; 

b. If the season or adverse weather conditions do not allow the 
establishment of vegetation, temporaiy mulching with straw, wood chips weighted 
with snow fence of branches or other methods shall be provided; 

c. A minimum of 4 inches of topsoil shall be placed and its surface 
smoothed to the specified grades; 

d. The use of herbicides is prohibited; 

e. Hydroseeding is required for steep slopes; 

f. Application rates on slopes greater than 3: 1 shall have a minimum 
seeding rate of 5 lbs/I 000 square feet; 



Decision on Application for Comprehensive Pennit 
Harborlight Community Patiners 
466 Highland Street, Hamilton, MA 
March 13, 2023 
Page 10of16 

g. A latex or fiber trackifier shall be used on these slopes at a minimum 
rate of 50 lbs. oftrackifier per 500 gallons of water used. 

21. There shall be no exterior constrllction activity, including running, idling or 
fueling of vehicles, on the Project Site before 7:00 a.m., or after 6:00 p.m., Monday through 
F:dday and before 8:00 a.m. or after 6:00 p.m. on Saturday. There shall be no exterior 
constmction activity on the Project site on Sundays or the following days unless special 
approval for such work has been issued by the Hamilton Police Depatiment: New Year's 
Day, Memorial Day, July Fomih, Labor Day, Thanksgiving and Christmas. The hours and 
days of operation shall be enforceable by the Hamilton Police Depatimerit. 

22. Within ninety (90) days of the issuance of the cetiificate of occupancy, the 
Applicant shall submit to the Board two sets of As-Built Plans for all infrastrncture 
improvements and, if applicable, evidence of compliance with this Comprehensive Permit 
and any other pe1mits required for the 'COnshuction of the improvements contemplated by 
this Comprehensive Permit. The As-Built Plans shall be provided both in paper form and 
as AutoCAD plans, in a version approved by the Building Commissioner so as to be 
compatible with the Building Commissioner's software and hardware. The site engineer of 
record shall provide a written description of any material deviations from the Building 
Pennit plans and shall certify that work has been completed in substantial confonnance 
with the Approved Plans. 

23. All catch basins and detention basins shall be cleaned at the end of · 
construction. Thereafter, the Applicant shall be responsible for maintaining the site's storm
water management system in accordance with generally accepted best management 
practices, and in accordance with a long-te1m Stmmwater Operation and Maintenance Plan 
which shall be provided in form and substance as set forth in the Stormwater Management 
Report of Hancock Associates dated 2/18/22, as amended through 10/21/22, pursuant to 
Standard 9 of the MassDEP Stmmwater Management Standards. 

24. The Applicant shall also execute and provide the Building Inspector with 
the Illicit Discharge Compliance Statement set forth in the Hancock Stormwater . 
Management Report, as amended through 10/21/22, pursuant to Standard 10 of the 
MassDEP Sto1mwater Management Standards. 

25. The Applicant shall be permanently responsible for the following aspects of 
the Project: 

a. all plowing, sanding, and snow removal. Snow shall be piled in 
designated locations as shown on the Approved Plans or alternate locations 
acceptable to the Fire Chief. If snow impairs roadways such that the travel area is 
less than eighteen feet wide, and all designated snow removal locations. have been 



Decision on Application for Comprehensive Pennit 
Harborlight Community Partners 
466 Highland Street, Hamilton, MA 
March 13, 2023 
Page 11 of 16 ' 

exhausted, the Applicant, at the direction of the Fire Chief, shall cause snow to be 
transp01ted from the Project to an off-site location for legal disposal; 

b. maintaining the site and establishing a regular schedule for site 
maintenance; 

.c. repairing and maintaining all on-site roadways, including drainage 
strnctures and utilities therein, and the infrastructure within the Project; 

d. maintaining all easements shown on the Plans; and 

e. site lighting. 

26. Prior to commencing Authorized Activity, the Applicant's Final Plans shall 
provide that the constrnction of the Project shall be perfmmed in accordance with all 
applicable laws and regulations regarding noise, vibration, dust, sedimentation control and 
blocking of Town roads. The Applicant shall comply with all such laws and regulations in 
the constrnction of the Project. It shall install aprons at entry points and provide for dust 
control in the form of sweeping and spraying of water whenever necessary. 

27. No stumps or construction debris shall be buried or disposed of at the 
Property. 

28. The Applicant shall use all reasonable means to minimize inconvenience to 
residents in the general area during constrnction. 

29. No blasting is pe1mitted. 

30. This Comprehensive Permit and any permit granted hereunder is granted to 
the Applicant and may not be transferred or assigned to any party without the approval of 

·the Subsidizing Agency and notice to the Board, as required by 760 CMR 56.05(12)(b). 

31. Any changes to the Project after issuance of the Comprehensive Peimit 
shall be reviewed and approved by the Board in accordance with 760 CMR 56.05 (11 ). 

32. Building constrnction may begin simultaneously with the commencement 
of construction of the in:frashucture, but no occupancy permit shall issue until compliance 
with the State Building Code has been achieved. 

· 33. This Comprehensive Permit shall lapse three years from the date that it 
takes final effect (i.e., the date that it is filed with the Town Clerk, subject to tolling in the 



Decision on Application for Comprehensive Pe1mit 
Harborlight Community Paiiners 
466 Highland Street, Hamilton, MA 
March 13, 2023 
Page 12of16 

event of any appeal and as provided in 760 CMR 56.05(12)(c)), unless both it is duly 
recorded and conshuction on the Project has commenced within such period. 

C. CONDITIONS PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF BUILDING PERMIT 

1. Prior to issuance of any Building Permit, the Applicant shall: 

a. Record this Comprehensive Permit decision with the Essex Regishy 
of Deeds and provide proof ofrecording to the Building Inspector. 

b. Submit to the Board and Building Inspector evidence of Final 
Approval by the Subsidizing Agency. 

c. Submit to the Board and Building Inspector a ceitified copy of the 
Regulatory Agreement and Monitoring Services Agreement for the Project. 
Execution and recording of the Regulato1y Agreement and subsidized funding 
c01mnitment shall be complete before issuance of a building permit. 

d. Submit all Final Plans for review and approval, including the 
stormwater management plan. 

e. Obtain all necessaiy electrical, plumbing or other permits required 
to begin construction of the Project. 

£ Provide to the Building Commissioner a final Stonnwater Pollution 
and Prevention Plan (SWPPP) to address specific sedimentation, erosion and dust 
conh·ol, which illustrates, at a minimum, locations of measures such as hay socks, 
silt fence, sedimentation basins, and all other erosion controls on the plaris, and 
provides detailed construction sequencing and methods to protect the infiltration 
capacity of each detention system. 

g. Provide procedures that outline the specific operation and 
maintenance measures for all sto1mwater/drainage facilities, including any 
temporary facilities that shall be employed to minimize or eliminate the threat of 
transmission of mosquito-borne diseases to the residents of the Project and nearby 
residents. 

2. Prior to the issuance of any building permit, the Approved Plans, finalized 
as provided in this decision, shall be signed and sealed by a Massachusetts Professional 
Engineer and a Massachusetts Registered Landscape Architect and filed with the Board and 
the Building Inspector, and shall include the following: 



Decision on Application for Comprehensive Pe1mit 
Harborlight Community Partners 
466 Highland Street, Hamilton, MA 
March 13, 2023 
Page 13 of 16 

a. Grading Drainage and Utilities, including on-site utilities and 
connections to utilities in adjacent public ways, which shall confo1m to all 
requirements of municipal departments or private utility companies having 
jurisdiction and to all applicable codes; 

b. Stonnwater Polluti01{ and Prevention Plan (SWPPP) notes that 
address mitigation of sedimentation and erosion, including details relating to any 
temporary drainage basins; · 

c. A Final Landscape Plan (which shall include among other features 
consistent with the Approved Plans, details concerning tree plantings to enhance the 
buffer zone and privacy between tl;te project and the existing neighboring residential 
development), and Final Lighting Plan. 

D. CONDITIONS PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF CERTIFICATE OF 
OCCUPANCY 

· 1. With respect to the work to be done by Applicant on private ways within the 
Property, no certificates of occupancy shall be issued by the Town until the Applicant has 
(i) substantially completed all site drainage and utility wodc appuitenant to any pa1ts of the 
Project for which an occupancy permit is to be issued; (ii) installed a binder course of 
pavement on driveways and parking areas within those parts of the Prope1ty; and (iii) has 
provided a performance guarantee consistent with Condition D.4. 

2. Landscaping shall be installed prior per the Approved and Final Plans. To 
the extent that landscaping for the Project is not completed prior to the issuance of the 
certificate of occupancy, the Applicant shall provide the Board a satisfactory surety 
instrnment, that sliall not expfre unless and until it is satisfactorily replaced or released, in 
an amount to be determined by the Board based upon the Applicant's reasonable estimate 

. of the costs to complete such landscaping work. 

3. The work to be secured shall include any landscape screening and fencing 
along the Limit of Work boundaiy. 

4. No Ce1tificate of Occupancy shall be issued until the infrastructure, 
common facilities, and common improvements specified in this decision and set forth on 
the Approved and Final Plans are constrncted and installed so as to adequately serve said 
phase, or adequate security has been provided, reasonably acceptable to the Building 
Inspector and approved as to form by the Board's legal counsel, to ensure the completion 
of such improvements. No such performance guarantee shall be requested until all 
drainage facilities and the base course of the pavement have been installed. The choice of 
perfonnance guarantee shall be governed by G.L. c. 41, § 81U(excluding the statut01y 
covenant which shall not apply in this matter) and shall be approved as to foim by the 

I 

l 
I 
! 



Decision on Application for Comprehensive.Permit 
Harborlight Community Partners 
466 Highland Street, Hamilton, MA 
March 13, 2023 
Page 14of16 

Board's legal counsel. The Applicant shall have all statuto1y choices of perfonnance 
guarantees available under G.L. c. 41; § 81U (as limited above) at all stages of constrnction 
up until request for the final certificate of occupancy. The Applicant acknowledges that a 
letter of credit is not a suitable form of surety under G.L. c. 41, § 81 U, ~7. 

5. Prior to issuance of the first ce1tificate of occupancy, the Applicant shall 
obtain approval from the U.S. Postmaster of any location to be used for mail boxes and 
parcel delive1y. 

6. Prior to issuance of a ce1ti:ficate of occupancy, the Applicant shall: 

a. Submit engineer's interim certification of compliance with utilities 
plan and profiles (as applicable) to the Building Inspector. 

b. Provide a letter to the Board, signed by the Applicant's civil 
engineer, ce1tifying that the as-built Project has been constrncted in compliance 
with the Final Plans in all mate1ial respects, or noting where there are differences, 
along with an as-built plan of the storrnwater management system by the 
Applicant's engineer showing compliance with the design inteµt, which, 
following approval, shall be appended to the "Long-Te1m Sto1mwater Operation 
and Maintenance Plan" for ease of reference by the property owner. 

c. Obtain acceptance from the Hamilton Fire Department of testing of 
all fire protection systems, fire alarm systems, fire sprinkler systems, and local 
smoke ala1ms within the dwelling units and that all fire hydrants are in place at 
proper grade and functioning. 

7. Prior to issuance of the ce1ti£:icate of occupancy, the Applicant shall: 

a. Submit to the Building Department, in digital file fo1mat, a final as-
built utilities plan including profiles, showing actual-in ground installation of all 
applicable utilities, rim and inve1t elevations, roadway, sidewalk and associated 
constrnction. The file format shall be in a fonn acceptable to the Building· 
Department. AutoCAD file delivery shall be in full model view and individual 
sheet views. The digital file shall include prope1ty boundaries, dimensions, 
easements, rights-of-way, edge of pavement, edge of sidewalk, edge of water 
bodies, wetland boundaries, topographic contours, spot elevations, parldng areas, 
road centerline and associated text. Said digital data shall be delivered in the 
Massachusetts State Plan Coordinate System, N01th American Datum 1983 and 
No1th American Ve1tical Datum 1988, in U.S. Survey Feet. 



Decision on Application for Comprehensive Permit 
Harborlight Community Partners 
466 Highland Street, Hamilton, MA 
March 13, 2023 
Page 15 ofl6 

b. Submit to 'the Building Inspector as-built plans for all buildings in 
the Project, ve1ification that the stonnwater management system has been inspected 
and cleaned, and Certificate of Compliance to the Board with all te1ms and 
conditions of this Pe1mit. 

E. SPECIAL CONDITIONS 

1. Final Plans shall include the following: 

a. All internal roadways within the site shall be verified to 
accommodate turning and maneuvering requirements of the largest anticipated 
fire/emergency vehicle, as defined by the Hamilton Fire Dept.; 

b. Vehicles exiting the project site to Asbury Street shall be placed 
under STOP-sign control, with a marked STOP-line; 

c. A sight line plan from the Applicant's traffic engineer, including 
required tree removal, to depict clear zones necessary to meet AASHTO's 
minimum and desirable Stopping Site Distance and Intersection Site Distance 
Standards. 

d. An additional twenty (20) shade-tolerant evergreen trees, a 
minimum of eight (8) feet in height, based on availability, to be added to the voids 
along the southerly side of the Project site. 

2. The dumpster for the Project shall be located at the opposite (northwest) 
corner of Canter Brook Lane. Dumpster pick up shall be cin a once per week basis on a 
Monday to Friday, not before 7 a.m. and not after 6 p.m,. 

3. The Applicant shall pay a fair share contribution of $172,058.00 of the 
cost of construction of a sidewalk along Asbury Street in frorit of the Project site to 
Highland A venue. 

SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS 



. , 
· ··r 1 

Decision on Appli9atio11 for Comprehensive Permit 
Hal:borlight Community P11rtners 
466Highland Street, Hamilton; MA 
March 13, 2023 
Page 16of16 

RECORD OE VOTE 

The Board votec:l 3-0-0 at public deliberations on March 1, 2023 tb grant a 
Comprehensive 'Pennit in accord~nee with the terms ~nd conditions stated in this 
decision, as attested by the signature below. 

Filed with theT:own Cl~rk on ~d-/ , 2023 . 

1 
• Town Clerk 

•I • 
'' , , ' 

Notice: Appeals, if an,y, by any party othertha.n the Applicant, shall be inade pursuant tp 
G L c. 40A, § 17 and shall be filed within twenty (20) days a:fterfilirtg notice with the 
Town Clerk. Any appeal by the Applicant shall be filed with the Bousi1ig Appea1s 
Committee pm·suan,t fo 0.L; t. 40B) § 22, within tWenty (20) days after filing notice with 
the Town Clerk. 

.Exhibit A- Waivers 

The Board has granted fhe waivers set forth in Exhibit A. To the e~teut ~10t 
specifically waived as set forth in Exhibit A, all zoning bylaw provisions, and a11y an,d aU 
focal niles, regulations o.r requirements shaJi apply to the Pl'oject. . 

85'223 I v2/BAMU003 7 



EXHIBIT 
A 

' I 
i 

I 
i 

. I 



Table of Requested Waivers Vs. Existing Zoning Requirements 

Requested Waivers Existing Zoning Requirements 
Multi-Family Use The parcel is located in zoning district R-IB, 

single residence district. 
Reduced Lot Area per Dwelling Unit (Sq. Ft.) Currently requires 40,000 square feet per 

dwelling unit. 
All other requirements are met including 
setback and height requirements. 

I 
r 
I 
I 
I 
I 

l I 
I 

' l J I 

~ I 
i 

a 
! 

~ 

I 
fi 
Ll 
Ii 

~ i 
~ I. u 
H 

~ 
!l 
" f_ 

~ 
'-
tt 
~ g 
~ 

~ 
~ 
Ii 
~ 
H f; 

~ 
! 



-· 

~ 
:J 
c 
,.-+ 
ro 
Vl 



DRAFT 
HAMIL TON ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
April 5, 2023 

7:00 p.m. 
Hybrid/Zoom Meeting 833 0386 6676 

Members Present: Bill Bowler (Chairman), Steven DeRocher (Associate), Brnce Ging1ich, 
David Perinchief, and Andie Philip (Associate). 

Others Present: Patrick Reffett and others as noted in the meeting. 

This meeting was called to order at 7:00 pm with a quorum established . 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
255 Woodbury St. Special Permit to construct an accessory apartment. Nicole Gray & 
William Miller. 
William Miller and Nicole Gray were present. Ms. Gray said the house was being reconstrncted 
after a fire. The property previously had an access01y apaitment that had not been recognized by 
the Town. Members discussed the updated plans, parking layout, and memorandum from the 
Building Inspector. Bill Bowler noted that the requirements under the By-law had been met for 
the 860 sf unit. The front door would be the primaiy entrance but Ms. Gray noted that her family 
used the kitchen entrance to access their home. Stairs were interior. There was one parking 
place for the access01y unit. Attorney Bowler reminded the applicant that the units could not 
become condominiums. No other strnctures were located on the I 0,000 sf lot and the owner 
would live in one of the units. The health inspector had submitted a letter indicating that the 
septic system was adequate for the proposal. 

Motion made by David Perinchief to grant the special pennit for the access01y apaitment at 255 
Woodbmy St. 
Seconded. 
Brnce Gingrich was an abutter who would not vote, 
Roll Call Vote: David Perinchief - aye, Andie Philip - aye, and Bill Bowler - aye. Unanimous in 
favor. 

505 Bay Road. An appeal of the Town of Hamilton Building Inspector's Decision 
regarding permitted signs. Harrigan's Hamilton Prop LLC. 
Grego1y Sonnier (owner) and Lany Judy (general manager) were present. Mr. Judy said he 
worked for HaITigan's for 15 years. The neon lights had been installed after remodeling in 1999 
and p1ior to that Mr. Judy thought the neon lights were probably lit in the building. There were 
three neon lights (fine wines, organic wines, and cigar signs) for at least 15 years. The craft beer 
emp01ium sign was added September 2013. Mr. Judy had never received a complaint from a 
neighbor and added that he believed the lights were originally running 24 hours a day. Bill 
Bowler announced that there had been a complaint from a neighbor. 

Jim Dooley and Cynthia Dooley (522 Bay Road) had filed a complaint with the Town. Mr. 
Dooley said he had lived across the street from the store prior to the fire and rebuilding. Mr. 
Dooley added that the lights were never on 24 hours a day until the new owner purchased the 

1 



prope1ty two years ago. The prope1ty had been allowed to have a business use in a residential 
neighborhood via special permit because it had been grandfathered. At the time of the special 
permit, there were three signs pennitted: two on the ends of the building and the neon sign on 
the roof. It was clear in the 1999 decision that no more signs would be allowed. In 2021, the 
applicant requested a sandwich board, which was allowed. CmTently the prope1ty had more 
signs, than was allowed in the business district. Mr. Dooley refeITed to the store owner's lack of 
response noting that the owner did not tum the lights off until 9:00 pm and the facts provided by 
the owner were inaccurate. 

Bill Bowler responded that neon signs had been in the windows since 1986, when Attorney 
Bowler moved to Hamilton. Attorney Bowler referred to Section 7 of chapter 40 and that any 
violation had to be brought fmward within 10 years. In Attorney Bowler's opinion, the structure 
(lights/signs required a building pennit) was grandfathered. Jim Dooley questioned the 
application of structure regarding the issue. 

The petition had proposed to tum the lights off when the store was closed. Jim Dooley was 
concerned that business hours could be extended in the future but Bill Bowler explained the 
Selectmen set business hours for the town. Bill Bowler said he did not think the store was 
opened after 9:00 pm. It was noted that one of the neon lights was burning out and was only 2/3 
as bright as in the past. 

M.A. Leekley (Margaret Rd.) was present via Zoom to say she hoped a good compromise would 
be found. 

Members discussed that the roof sign and end signs were covered by the1999 Decision. Bill 
Bowler suggested lighting the neon signs dming existing business hours and if the hours were 
extended, the owner would need to return to the Board . Current hours were 9:00 am to 9:00 pm 
Monday to Saturday and 10:00 am to 8:00 pm. on Sunday. In response to Jim Dooley's concern 
that other forms of lighting such as LED tnight create even brighter lights, Attorney Bowler 
suggested refining the Finding to include character features such as no flashing signs and liinit 
the size, number, and luminosity to the existing signage. Members discussed grandfathering the 
use to the previous or existing owners' business hours. 

Motion made by Bruce Gingrich to grant the appeal of the Buildii1g Inspector's decision 
regarding the sign to the extent that we find that the window signs internally lighted currently 
there may continue to be there in the same size, luminosity, and number as currently existed and 
during cmTent business hours which are Monday through Saturday 9:00 am to 9:00 pm. and 
Sunday 10:00 am to 8:00 pm. 
David Perinchief offered his concerns and hoped to get more ii1fonnation about how the Finding 
might be affected by the Dark Sky By-law. Andie Philip wondered if lumen testing might be 
done or if landscaping might minllnize the impact. Bill Bowler suggested analyzing the 
difference between the neon lights and the light emitted from the windows. A site walk was 
considered. 

2 



Patrick Reffett questioned how many signs were needed. When asked if the owner would reduce 
signage, Jim Dooley suggested limiting the neon light time until 8:00 pm. eve1y night of the · 
week. The owner agreed . 

Motion made by Brnce Gingrich to amend the motion to change the hours that the neon lights 
can be lighted from 9:00 am to 8:00 pm. Monday through Saturday and 10:00 to 8:00 pm. on 
Sunday. 
David Pe1inchief seconded . 
Roll Call Vote: Brnce Gingrich - aye, David Pe1inchief - aye, and Bill Bowler - aye. 
Unanimous in favor. 

438 Asbury St. Special Permit for an accessory apartment. Paul Thober. Continued until 
May 3, 2023 at the request of the applicant. 

11 Rust St. Finding to create a full second floor living area, add a front porch and a bay 
window. Sara and Douglas Cook. 
Sara Cook (owner) was present. Ms. Cook explained that the proposal would expand the second 
floor of the existing strncture. The strncture would have the same footprint but the height of the 
strncture increased . The front porch would expand but the back deck would be removed. The 
proposal would not further encroach on the setbacks. The second floor would have three 
bedrooms and one bedroom. An email was attached to the application that the septic plan was 
signed by the septic inspection. Members discussed that the proposed structure would fit well in 
the neighborhood . 

Motion made by David Perinchief to grant the Finding under the Section. 
Seconded by Brnce Gingrich 
Roll Call Vote: Brnce Ging1ich - aye, David Perinchief - aye, and Bill Bowler - aye. 
Unanimous in favor. 

REGULAR BUSINESS 
Minutes 
Motion made by David Pe1inchief to approve the minutes of March 1, 2023. 
Seconded by Bruce Gingrich. 
Vote: Unanimous in favor. 

DOCUMENTS DISCUSSED 
255 Woodbmy St. Updated plans, parking layout, memorandum from the Building Inspector, 
and letter from the Health Inspector. 
505 Bay Road. Building Inspector's Decision, Dark Sky By-law, and the 1999 ZBA Decision. 
11 Rust St. Email from the Health Inspector. 

ADJOURNMENT 
Motion made by Bruce Ging1ich to adjourn at 7:57 pm. 
Seconded by David Perinchief. 
Roll Call Vote: David Perinchief - aye, Bruce Gingrich - aye, and Bill Bowler - aye. 
U nanirnous in favor. 

Respectfully submitted as approved at the ________ meeting. 

3 



Bill Bowler 

4 


